Public Document Pack

Agenda Reports & Other Papers
Presented to the
Meeting of the
Adult Care and Health Cabinet Panel
on
Wednesday, 6 November 2019

1.

Agenda

1 - 92

Agenda

AGENDA for a meeting of the ADULT CARE & HEALTH CABINET PANEL in
COMMITTEE ROOM B, at COUNTY HALL, HERTFORD on WEDNESDAY 6
NOVEMBER 2019 at 10.00AM
___________________________________________________________________
MEMBERS OF THE PANEL (13) (Quorum 3)
N Bell; E M Gordon; F Guest; K M Hastrick; D J Hewitt; F R G Hill (Vice Chairman); T
Howard: J S Kaye; N A Quinton; R M Roberts (Chairman); A Stevenson; R G Tindall; W J
Wyatt-Lowe
AGENDA
Meetings of the Cabinet Panel are open to the public (this includes the press) and
attendance is welcomed. However, there may be occasions when the public are excluded
from the meeting for particular items of business. Any such items are taken at the end of
the public part of the meeting and are listed under “Part II (‘closed’) agenda”.
Committee Room B is fitted with an audio system to assist those with hearing
impairment. Anyone who wishes to use this should contact main (front) reception.
Members are reminded that all equalities implications and equalities
impact assessments undertaken in relation to any matter on this agenda must be
rigorously considered prior to any decision being reached on that matter.
Members are reminded that:
(1)

if they consider that they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter
to be considered at the meeting they must declare that interest and must not
participate in or vote on that matter unless a dispensation has been granted
by the Standards Committee;

(2)

if they consider that they have a Declarable Interest (as defined in paragraph
5.3 of the Code of Conduct for Members) in any matter to be considered at
the meeting they must declare the existence and nature of that interest. If a
member has a Declarable Interest they should consider whether they should
participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it.

Agenda Pack Page 1
1

PART I (PUBLIC) AGENDA
1.

MINUTES
To confirm the Minutes (Part I & II) of the meeting held on 22 October 2019
(to follow)

2.

PUBLIC PETITIONS
The opportunity for any member of the public, being resident in Hertfordshire,
to present a petition relating to a matter with which the Council is concerned,
which is relevant to the remit of this Cabinet Panel and which contains
signatories who are either resident in or who work in Hertfordshire.
Members of the public who are considering raising an issue of concern via a
petition are advised to contact their local member of the Council. The
Council's criterion and arrangements for the receipt of petitions are set out in
Annex 24 - Petitions Scheme of the Constitution.
If you have any queries about the petitions procedure for this meeting please
contact Elaine Manzi, by telephone on (01992) 588062 or by e-mail to
elaine.manzi@hertfordshire.gov.uk.
At the time of the publication of this agenda no notices of petitions have been
received.

3.

CHANGES TO SERVICE MODEL FOR MENTAL HEALTH SOCIAL CARE
Report of the Director of Adult Care Services

4.

HERTFORDSHIRE CARE STANDARD (QUARTER 2)
Report of the Director of Adult Care Services

5.

ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2018-19 FROM HERTS AT HOME LIMITED
Report of the Director of Adult Care Services

6.

FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME
The Panel is invited to note the provisional agenda for 2 December 2019
 Review of Adults with Disabilities Short Breaks
 Quarter 2 Performance
 Sensory Services Strategy
 HAFLS update

7.

OTHER PART I BUSINESS
Such Part I (public) business which, if the Chairman agrees, is of sufficient
urgency to warrant consideration.

Agenda Pack Page 2

2

PART II (‘CLOSED’) AGENDA
There are no items of Part II business on this agenda. If Part II business is notified the
Chairman will move:“That under Section 100(A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public
be excluded from the meeting for the following item/s of business on the grounds that
it/they involve/s the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph….
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the said Act and the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.”
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
If you require further information about this agenda please contact
Elaine Manzi, Democratic Services, on telephone no. (01992) 588062 or email
elaine.manzi@hertfordshire.gov.uk.
Agenda documents are also available on the internet here
QUENTIN BAKER
CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER

Agenda Pack Page 3
3

This page is intentionally left blank

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item No.

ADULT CARE AND HEALTH CABINET PANEL
WEDNESDAY 6 NOVEMBER 2019 AT 10:00AM

3

CHANGES TO SERVICE MODEL FOR MENTAL HEALTH SOCIAL CARE
Report of the Director of Adult Care Services
Author:-

Helen Maneuf, Assistant Director Planning and
Resources (Tel: 01438 845502)

Executive Member:-

Richard Roberts, Adult Care and Health

1.

Purpose of report

1.1

To invite the Cabinet Panel to recommend to Cabinet that Cabinet
agrees changes to the accommodation service model for people with
mental health related needs, delegated to Hertfordshire Partnership
Foundation NHS Trust (HPFT) and agrees Invest to Transform
proposals to enable delivery of this transformation.

2.

Summary

2.1

The Council and the Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) within
Hertfordshire have delegated the delivery of their health related social
care and support functions in respect of mental health to Hertfordshire
Partnership Foundation Trust (HPFT) by way of an agreement made
under Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006.

2.2

Under its new five year delivery agreement with the Council HPFT has
set out plans to introduce the Council’s ‘Connected Lives’ 1 adult social
care model, focussing on people’s recovery and life back in their local
community rather than staying in accommodation designated for use
by people with mental-ill health for the long term.

2.3

The plans will deliver efficiencies of four per cent per annum on
HPFT’s delegated social care budgets from 2020/21 for years two to
five of its delivery contract, totalling £3.6m per annum by 2023/24.

Information on the Connected Lives approach can be found here:
https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/documents/s4667/06%20Item%204%20Connected%2
0Lives.pdf
1

Agenda Pack Page 5

1

2.4

In order to facilitate this change HPFT is requesting Invest to
Transform funding of £1.654m over the three year period 2020/21 to
2022/23 for commissioning, training, project management, and to
‘pump prime’ new delivery models.

3.

Recommendations

3.1

For Cabinet Panel to recommend to Cabinet that Cabinet:


agrees changes to the service model for care and support for
people with mental health related needs to introduce the
Connected Lives approach and deliver efficiencies of £3.6m per
annum by 2023/24.

 agrees Invest to Transform funding of £1.654m over the three
year period 2020/21 to 2022/23 to enable delivery of this
transformation.
4.

Background

4.1

The Council and HPFT are partners in an agreement under section 75
of the National Health Service Act 2006 to jointly provide mental health
services to persons of all ages. Under the agreement the Council and
CCGs delegate their responsibilities for mental health related care and
support to HPFT; the partners agree to jointly discharge functions on
each others behalf and provide appropriate facilities so that mental
health services in the county can be better integrated.

4.2

Under its new five year delivery agreement with the Council, HPFT has
set out plans to introduce the Council’s ‘Connected Lives’ adult social
care model, focussing on people’s recovery and life back in their local
community rather than staying in mental health accommodation for the
long term.

4.3

In 2019/20 the budgeted expenditure on social care support for people
with mental health needs via HPFT is £23.89m. HPFT has proposed
annual efficiencies of four per cent from 2020/21 for years two to five of
the agreement. This translates into an annual ongoing efficiency of
£3.6m per annum by the end of the period.

Agenda Pack Page 6

2

4.4

The transformation proposals comprise three workstreams as set out
below:

Workstream
Workstream 1
– Social work
practice and
delivery

Project

Approach

A. Implementing Connected Lives

B. Expansion of Intensive Enablement
Workstream 2
–
Commissioning
and provider
development

C. Enablement at Home / floating support
D. Provider Review Programme
E. Provider Development Scheme

Workstream 3
– Governance,
data and
reporting

4.5

F. Programme Governance and Charging

Enablement, prevention
and outcomes-based
provision
Enablement and
reducing long-term
dependency
Enablement and
prevention of placement
Cost containment and
sustainability
Outcomes-focused care,
embedding recovery
principles and move on
Income maximisation
and
programme/performance
oversight

In order to achieve the transformation the Council will need to support
by investing in transformation and overcoming barriers to change.
Invest to Transform fund proposals are set out in Appendix 1 and
summarised below:

Agenda Pack Page 7

3

4.6

In recognition of the significant programme of change the partners will
undertake a formal review annually and allocation of funding will be
conditional upon successful delivery of planned efficiencies and
changes in accordance with programme timetables.

5

Financial Implications

5.1

HPFT has proposed annual efficiencies of four per cent from 2020/21
for years two to five of the agreement. This translates into an annual
ongoing efficiency of £3.6m per annum by the end of the period. The
Council is committed to annual inflationary and demography uplifts
and to reviewing efficiency targets if there is a reasonable need to do
so.

5.2

The cost of the transformation is £1.654m and it is proposed to deliver
this by means of the Invest to Transform Fund over a phased period
from 2020/21 to 2023/24. Progress will be reviewed annually and
allocations of funding in years two and three of the programme will be
dependent on delivery of efficiencies and transformational change.

6

Equalities Implications

6.1

When considering proposals placed before Members it is important
that they are fully aware of, and have themselves rigorously considered
the equalities implications of the decision that they are taking.

6.2

Rigorous consideration will ensure that proper appreciation of any
potential impact of that decision on the County Council’s statutory
obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty. As a minimum this
requires decision makers to read and carefully consider the content of
any Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) produced by officers.

6.3

The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council when exercising its
functions to have due regard to the need to (a) eliminate discrimination,
harassment, victimisation and other conduct prohibited under the Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it and
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. The
protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are age;
disability; gender reassignment; marriage and civil partnership;
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion and belief, sex and sexual
orientation.

6.4

An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been undertaken and is
attached at Appendix 2. The following potential impacts on those with
protected characteristics under the Act have been identified.

Agenda Pack Page 8

4

Particular groups of people with protected characteristics are more
likely to experience mental disorders and more likely to experience
poorer outcomes as a result of that mental disorder. Practical and
cultural barriers to accessing statutory and non-statutory exist for
certain groups and communities that impact on likelihood of achieving
positive outcomes from service provision.




Action/s to address / mitigate these potential impacts are:
Stakeholder involvement within transformation programme
Easy read information on Connected Lives and assessment and care
planning practice
Staff training in Connected Lives approach and practice skills
Personalised approach to care management that focuses on shared
decision making and collaborative risk management approaches.

Agenda Pack Page 9

5

This page is intentionally left blank

ITEM 3 APPENDIX 1
Business Case

Social Care Transformation in HPFT

Business Case
Project Name:
Date:
Author:

Social care transformation in Hertfordshire Partnership
Foundation Trust
Release:
Draft
Andrew Godfrey – Senior Service Line Lead (HPFT)

Owner:
Client:
Document Number:

Agenda Pack Page 11

1

ITEM 3 APPENDIX 1
Business Case

Social Care Transformation in HPFT

Executive summary
Social care budgets have been under significant pressure for a number of years. Care budgets remain a key strategic
risk for the system as they are primarily driven by rising demand – both from a higher acuity of service users being
managed in the community and the changing nature of support.
Working in partnership, the County Council and HPFT have developed an ambitious efficiencies programme to
deliver a further 15% reduction in revenue spend on the devolved HPFT social care budget by 2023/24. This amounts
to a 4% per year efficiency and £9.1m in total savings over the four years.
Reducing social care expenditure in mental health services is challenging given that there are relatively low numbers
of individuals receiving support but needs are often complex and lifelong. There is strong evidence that timely
enabling support can promote independence and reduce long-term dependency, however, there are gaps within the
current provision to ensure this always happens. Social care expenditure is also part of pooled budget arrangements
and has been for at least 15 years, this makes it difficult to separately identify social care only.
This programme delivers a number of projects and schemes with the primary focus of reducing accommodationbased provision i.e., placements, in favour of preventative and enabling care. This business case outlines those
projects and the required investment required to deliver the savings from 2020/21, including expected phasing.
A separate Invest To Transform bid is being prepared to cover in-year, set-up costs. The programme cost are
outlined below:
Summary of business case
20/21
Pay
Project A - Implementing Connected Lives
Project B - Expansion of Intensive Enablement
Project C - Enablement at Home / floating support
Project D - Provider Review Programme
Project E - Provider Development Programme
Project F - Programme Governance and Charging

£

Total Pay
Non-pay
Project A - Implementing Connected Lives
Project B - Expansion of Intensive Enablement
Project C - Enablement at Home / floating support
Project D - Provider Review Programme
Project E - Provider Development Programme
Project F - Programme Governance and Charging

21/22
£

22/23
£

106,535
26,049
122,296
109,240
109,378

106,535
113,533
109,240
109,378

38,561

473,497
20/21

438,686
21/22

38,561
22/23

£

£

23/24
£

£

Total
£

-

213,069
26,049
235,829
218,480
257,317

23/24
£

950,744
Total
£

101,520

124,800
183,040

124,800
91,520

-

30,000
6,000

30,000
6,000

6,000

-

249,600
376,080
60,000
18,000

Total Non-Pay

137,520

343,840

222,320

-

703,680

Total

611,017

782,526

260,881

-

1,654,424

Background
Hertfordshire County Council ( the County Council) and HPFT are partners along with the Clinical Commissioning
Groups in Hertfordshire in an agreement under section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 to jointly provide
mental health services to persons of all ages. Under the agreement the partners agree to jointly discharge functions
on each others behalf and provide appropriate facilities so that mental health services in the county can be better
integrated.
In 2019/20 the budgeted expenditure on social care support for people with mental health needs via HPFT is
£23.6m. As part of the newly negotiated 5 year delivery contract which started in April 2019, HPFT has been

Agenda Pack Page 12

2

ITEM 3 APPENDIX 1
Business Case

Social Care Transformation in HPFT

challenged to deliver annual efficiency savings of 4 per cent from 2020/21 for years 2 to 5 of the agreement. This
translates into an annual ongoing saving of £3.6m per annum by the end of the period.

Required annual efficiency saving (£)
Required annual efficiency saving (% of total budget)
Cumulative efficiency saving (£)
Cumulative efficiency saving (% of budget)

19/20
20/21
21/22
22/23
23/24
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
0
£945
£907
£871
£836
0%
4%
4%
4%
4%
0
0%

£945
4.0%

£1,852
7.8%

£2,723
11.5%

£3,558
15.1%

Approach
HPFT has been working in partnership with the County Council to develop a transformation programme for its social
care delivery with the following objectives:
Objective 1 – Improve social work practice and compliance with the legal framework
Objective 2 – Promote prevention, independent living and recovery principles in all practice and services
Objective 3 – Deliver financial efficiencies of £3.6m by 2023/24
Objective 4 – Increase personalised care and reduce reliance on accommodation based provision
Objective 5 – Reduce delayed transfers of care due to delays in social care
Objective 6 – Reduce numbers of individuals in out of area placements
The programme will deliver the efficiency savings primarily through reducing the total number of individuals
receiving care in placements. This will be done through investment in preventative and recovery-focused services
and practices. This business case outlines the investment required to deliver the required changes.
HPFT has committed to implementing the Connected Lives approach in both practice and the commissioning of
services. This is both a key enabler and driver for this programme and will ensure that the delivery of efficiency
savings does not negatively impact the delivery of care and support.

A joint annual review of the programme and associated benefits will take place. The reviews will ensure that the
programme is meeting its objectives and delivering the efficiency savings as outlined. Further investment funding for
the programme will only be released where both parties are satisfied that the savings are being delivered without a
detrimental impact on quality of care.
Drivers
Drivers for the business case and programme include:

Agenda Pack Page 13

3

ITEM 3 APPENDIX 1
Business Case

Social Care Transformation in HPFT

National
 Further embedding the principles of the Care Act 2014
 Promoting the personalisation agenda
Local




Delivery of £3.6m efficiency savings by 2023/24
Implementing Connected Lives
HPFTs Good to Great Strategy – see below:

Current position
The overall number of individuals who require support due to their mental health needs, is a relatively small and
stable group with low levels of turnover. The evidence-base for enablement type provision is strong in this group and
the majority of individuals, with the right support, can be re-abled and live more independent lives1. Research
conducted by the Housing Association Charitable Trust found that 80% of individuals using Intensive Enablement
services in Essex were able to move into more independent living following their use of the service2. Additionally,
analysis of the Intensive Enablement service in Hertfordshire, currently delivered by Turning Point, found 83% of
individuals were able to move into more independent living.
As of April 2019, there were 434 individuals in social care placements commissioned by HPFT. Of these, 195 were in
nursing or residential care, 216 in supporting living and 23 in intensive enablement provision. Conversely, there were
only 278 individuals receiving a package of care in their own home with the vast proportion of these being small
packages.
The below graph outlines the difference in both expenditure and number of service users in receipt of a care
package at home and in placements.

Joint Commisioning Panel for Mental Health – Guidance for commissioners – rehabilitation services for people with complex
mental health needs. (November 2016)
2 HACT – Essex Mental Health Intensive Enablement Service – An Evaluation by HACT (2018)
1

Agenda Pack Page 14

4

ITEM 3 APPENDIX 1
Business Case

Social Care Transformation in HPFT

Benchmarking the usage of residential and nursing care with our comparator authorities suggests Hertfordshire is a
higher user of this type of provision. It suggests there are currently 30-40 additional individuals in residential/nursing
placements than in other areas. However, Hertfordshire’s rate is comparable with the East of England average.

Benchmarking comparisons of supported living provision is more challenging due to different funding arrangements
in each local authority which leads to reporting issues. However, reviews of the existing service users in placements
in Hertfordshire has identified a number could be moved on into less restrictive and more independent provision,
with the right support. There is also strong evidence that long-term placements could have been avoided entirely if
enablement and recovery-focused services had been available as an alternative.
Both local analysis and benchmarking suggests an overreliance on expensive and institutionalised, accommodationbased provision, particularly residential and nursing care. The table below outlines the proposed changes in
provision required to deliver the efficiency saving of £3.6m by 2023/24.

Agenda Pack Page 15

5

ITEM 3 APPENDIX 1
Business Case

Social Care Transformation in HPFT

Efficiencies programme
Service
Community Rehab
Longer Term Supported Living
Nursing
Residential
Transitional Supported Living
PBS and DPs

Current End of Y4 Change Efficiencies Projects
23
30
7
-187986 Project A - Implementing Connected Lives
185
160
-25
659435 Project B - Expansion of Intensive Enablement
60
50
-10
531787 Project C - Enablement at Home / floating
135
100
-35
1586986 support
31
31
0
0 Project E - Provider Development Programme
278
300
22
-92300

Reduction in placement total

0

0

0

2497923

Other areas:
Project A - Implementing Connected Lives
575000 Project D - Provider Review Programme
Project A - Implementing Connected Lives
Project B - Expansion of Intensive Enablement
Project C - Enablement at Home / floating
support
430000 Project E - Provider Development Programme
180000 Project F - Programme Governance and Charging

Provider review programme

Demography uplifts
Financial charging
Total efficiences

3682923

Proposed projects
HPFT has initiated a transformation programme to deliver the step change in the way services are provided. There
are a number of projects required to deliver the transformation; these have been grouped into three key
workstreams, which are outlined in the table below.
Workstream
Workstream 1 – Social work
practice and delivery

Project
A. Implementing Connected Lives
B. Expansion of Intensive Enablement

Workstream 2 –
Commissioning and provider
development

C. Enablement at Home / floating support

Enablement and prevention of placement

D. Provider Review Programme

Cost containment and sustainability

E. Provider Development Scheme
Workstream 3 – Governance,
data and reporting

Approach
Enablement, prevention and outcomesbased provision
Enablement and reducing long-term
dependency

F. Programme Governance and Charging

Outcomes-focused care, embedding
recovery principles and move on
Income maximisation and
programme/performance oversight

Project A – Implementing Connected Lives
Connected Lives is the County Council’s whole service approach to social care practice, including community
practice, personalised enablement and new models of commissioning. It is underpinned by core components of the
Care Act 2014 and ensures community opportunities, citizenship, and personalised outcomes.
The model sets out standards, principles and approaches for staff delivering social care services, with more emphasis
on prevention and enablement. It should be applied to every area of work and requires cultural change and shift in
practice.

Agenda Pack Page 16

6

ITEM 3 APPENDIX 1
Business Case

Social Care Transformation in HPFT

Currently provision of care and support services in the community in HPFT are delivered via the Social Outcomes
Assessment (Care Act 2014 eligibility assessment) and the Wellbeing Plan which incorporates the commissioning of
personal budgets. Provision of care and support services via supported living, residential and nursing placements is
delivered via referral to the Continuing Care and Placements Service (CCPS) and social care panel process.
The current process and delivery structure is highly focused on the provision of commissioned services, although it
should be recognised that preventative/in-house support is delivered, despite not being not well evidenced within
the current pathway.
Current challenges to delivery of high quality social care practice and services include:
 Need for better understanding of social work practice principles, interventions, theory and method.
 Need for improved understanding of statutory duties in social care assessment, care and support planning
as specifically defined by the Care Act 2014.
 Improving processes around the delivery of social care need identification, assessment and care and support
planning.
 Underutilisation of preventative and universal services.
 Over-bureaucratic assessment, care planning and commissioning processes and systems which reduce time
spent on face to face service user and carer interventions.
 No provision for recording of care and support planning for social care at a pre-eligibility assessment stage.
 A resource allocation system which is unfit for purpose.
 Lack of outcome focussed collaboration with and commissioning of social care providers.
 Poor performance – review position.
The objectives for this project are:






Objective 1: Implement Connected Lives model for mental health – assessment, care and support planning,
and practice delivery (including assessment development on PARIS)
Objective 2: Review social care decision making processes and procedures
Objective 3: Development of social work skills and interventions
Objective 4: Review of Support Time and Recovery (STAR) Worker role
Objective 5: Introduction of assistive technology

By embedding the Connected Lives approach in HPFT, there will be an improved approach to social work practice in
line with the Care Act principles. This will place a greater emphasis on prevention and enablement care before

Agenda Pack Page 17

7

ITEM 3 APPENDIX 1
Business Case

Social Care Transformation in HPFT

considering longer-term commissioned options. It will also ensure that care is commissioned on an outcomes basis.
The overall effect will see an increase in individuals being supported in the community and a reduction in placement
usage.
A draft workstream project initiation document has been developed to outline the key deliverables and timescales
for this project. There will be a HPFT Connected Lives Board to co-ordinate and deliver the change with
representation from across the organisation. Specific task and finish groups will be created as required to develop
and implement they key deliverables.
Given the scale and interdependencies between the deliverables, the intention is to recruit a small project team to
implement Connected Lives across HPFT. As many of the materials and training have been developed for the County
Council’s implementation, it is hoped that many of these can be repurposed for HPFT’s needs reducing the overall
timescales for implementation and review to two years.
An estimate of the resource required to deliver this project is outlined below:
Project A - Implementing Connected Lives
Post Title

20/21

FYE salary
Grade Posts and oncosts £

21/22
£

22/23
£

23/24
£

Total
£

Comments
Three year role to co-ordinate and

Project Manager
Subject Matter Expert
Project Officer
Total

7

1

55,234

55,234

55,234

-

-

8a

0.5

65,123

32,561

32,561

-

-

5

0.5

37,480

18,740

18,740

-

-

106,535

106,535

-

-

Benefits
 Required to implement the changes in social
work practice and delivery to enable a shift
towards prevention and enablement
 Reduced long term revenue costs
 Alignment between the County Council and
HPFT in practice and approach
 Compliance with the legal framework (ie, Care
Act 2014 )
 Consistent approach with shared community
providers

110,467 deliver Connected Lives.
Backfilling Consultant Social Worker
role to provide advice and support for
65,123 programme roll out.
Project officer support for
37,480 development and roll out

213,069

Disbenefits
 Potential overlap and duplication with health
based assessments and reviews.
 Significant training and development
programme required to implement

Project B – Expansion of Intensive Enablement
NOTE: A separate paper on recycling capital from current mental health properties has been developed and is
seeking agreement to its proposals alongside this business case. This business case is dependent on the proposals
in that paper being agreed.
Intensive Enablement (IE) is a supported housing service for individuals with severe and enduring mental health
needs. The service provides intensive enabling support to individuals to help them redevelop skills and confidence to
live independently. The service supports individuals for up to 18 months. It is an alternative to residential care and
longer-term supported living. Around 58% of individuals are able to move into their own tenancies with minimal
support following the completion of the programme. A further 25% go into lower-level supported living provision.
8

Agenda Pack Page 18

ITEM 3 APPENDIX 1
Business Case

Social Care Transformation in HPFT

There are 12 IE beds in Hertfordshire and these are located at Midpoint, Stevenage with Turning Point as the current
provider. There are 2 other beds which are used for crisis provision. The contract is delivered on a block basis and is
due to go out for competitive tender in early-2020. The building is owned by the County Council and leased to
Turning Point. This arrangement works well and allows for the service to be retendered, without the need for new
providers to find a suitable building to deliver from.
Modelling of needs has indicated an expansion of Hertfordshire-based IE up to between 20-24 beds is required to
meet demand and deliver an “enablement-first” pathway. Between 4-8 beds will be used to deliver a shorter-term
Discharge to Assess pathway, which is currently being piloted. This will ensure that individual’s longer term social
care needs are being assessed outside of the hospital environment, which will give a more accurate understanding of
what support they require.
Once the additional capacity is delivered it will be expected that all individuals should be given the opportunity in IE
before being considered for any longer-term social care placement. This will support the delivery of a reduction in
placements overall.
The expansion of the service requires the provision of another building in the south of the county of around 14 beds.
A separate paper has been prepared which proposes the disposal of a number of existing properties used for mental
health service users. These are predominantly group homes type provision. Many of these are empty or have
significant voids and are no longer fit for purpose.
The proposal is that these are disposed and the capital reinvested in buying a 14 bedded unit to deliver the
expanded IE service around the Watford area. This would be on the same basis as Midpoint – i.e . the County
Council would own the building and lease it to a new provider.
A property specification has been developed and there is a property search underway to find a suitable building.
Resource has already been allocated to deliver the tender process but some programme management time is
required to support the property search and development.

Project B - Expansion of Intensive Enablement
Post Title

Programme Manager

FYE salary
Grade Posts and oncosts £

8a

0.4

65,123

Total

21/22
£

26,049

Pay total
Non-Pay
Intensive Enablement

20/21

-

26,049
20/21
£

22/23
£

-

21/22
£

26,049

Benefits
 Expanded provision to ensure an “enablement
first” approach.
 Reduction in longer term revenue costs
 Reduction in placements and longer-term
dependency

124,800

Total
£

23/24
£

Comments

Part-time post for up to one year to
support both the property search
element of the IE programme and to coordinate HPFT resources in regards to
26,049 tender and specification development.

-

22/23
£

124,800

23/24
£

26,049
Total
£

Comments

124,800

249,600

124,800

Pump priming 8 additional IE beds.
£300pw difference between standard
275,649 supported living and IE = £300*8*52

-

Disbenefits
 Short-term increase in revenue costs to fund
expansion.
 Unless other services can be decommissioned,
will increase provision in Watford area, where
there is currently an over provision of

Agenda Pack Page 19

9

ITEM 3 APPENDIX 1
Business Case



Social Care Transformation in HPFT

accommodation-based provision.

More localised provision – schemes in both
Herts Valleys and East and North of county
Better use of assets – disposals of underutilised
properties

Project C – Enablement at Home/ floating support
As outlined above, HPFT currently commissions relatively low levels of support to help keep individuals at home. This
leads to an over-reliance on placements in order to provide support and keep people safe. Placements are a more
expensive provision and in 4/5 cases means individuals have to move to another area to receive support.
A significant barrier to supporting more individuals at home is the underdeveloped provider market in this area for
mental health. Whilst there are a number of small providers delivering support to this client group in Hertfordshire,
the quality and cost of support varies significantly between providers and localities. It can take weeks for packages to
be put in place and often providers do not have the skills to support individuals with more complex needs.
This project will deliver a tender on commissioned support at home. There are likely to be at least two levels of
provision in the tender – Enablement at Home and Standard. Enablement at Home is also likely to be tendered on a
part-block basis to help develop the market in this area.
The project will require a full time senior commissioning manager and project officer to deliver. A commissioning
manager has been identified within the County COuncil to be seconded to HPFT to support this work.
Project C - Enablement at Home / floating support
FYE salary
Post Title
Grade Posts and oncosts £

20/21

21/22
£

22/23
£

23/24
£

Total

Comments

£

Seconded HCC senior commissioning

Commissioning Manager

8b

1

76,053

76,053

76,053

-

-

1

37,480

37,480

37,480

-

-

152,106 manager to lead on tender
Project officer support to deliver

Project officer
Contracts officer

5
H9/M1

0.2

43,813

8,763
122,296
20/21

Pay total
Non-Pay

£

113,533
21/22
£

Enablement at Home service

91,520

SPG and legal costs

10,000

22/23
£

183,040

74,960 tender
Access to commissioning/contracts
officer from HCC to support contract
8,763 set up.

23/24
£

235,829
Total
£

Comments
320 hours per week @£22ph. Costs

91,520

366,080 split ITT:HPFT

Procurement and legal advice for

Total

223,816

Benefits
 Enables reduction in placements and longer
term revenue costs
 Focus on flexible, outcomes-based support –
allows support to flex up or down based on
need
 Clearer pathways and services for staff and
service users.
 Improves contracting and invoicing processes
 Ensures compliance with procurement
regulations

296,573

91,520

-

10,000 tendering exercise for floating support
611,909

Disbenefits
 Potential short-term increase in revenue costs
to fund expansion
 Managing a higher-level of risk in the
community.

Agenda Pack Page 20

10

ITEM 3 APPENDIX 1
Business Case


Social Care Transformation in HPFT

Maintains individuals at home and nearer their
communities.

Project D – Provider review programme
HPFT commissions over 85 placement providers and 73 community providers. With the exception of Midpoint, there
is no block provision and usage of frameworks is limited. Fees, fee structures and models have been largely led and
developed directly with individual providers. This has led to a confusing and inflexible market for the provision of
support and care.
HPFT have paid little to no fee uplifts in the previous 7 years and it is clear there are some providers who have
overcompensated for that in new admission fees and others who are struggling to remain viable. Almost without
exception, the current fee structures are a single base price for all individuals within a scheme. This inflexibility does
not allow for personalised care where support can be increased or decreased based on the individual’s needs.
This project will deliver a provider review programme across HPFT’s providers with the aim of reviewing fees and
hours to ensure providers are sustainable and to deliver an overall revenue efficiency saving.
The County Council’s provider review programme is already underway and has shown significant benefits to date –
both in terms of overall revenue savings and provider sustainability. The proposed approach is to fund two staff in
the County Council’s provider review programme to work with HPFT’s providers. This will ensure that savings can be
delivered at a faster pace and with overall greater alignment to the County Council’s approach and strategy.
The proposed staffing would include a senior negotiator and negotiator with their time being split between HPFT
and the County Council bases.

Project D - Provider Review Programme
Post Title

FYE salary
Grade Posts and oncosts £

20/21

21/22
£

22/23
£

23/24
£

Total
£

Comments

M3 - Senior Negotiator

M3

1

56,530

56,530

56,530

-

-

113,060 Embedded in HCC's Provider Review

M2 - Negotiator

M2

1

52,710

52,710

52,710

-

-

105,420 and services.

109,240

109,240

-

-

218,480

Total

Benefits
 Reduction in longer term revenue costs
 Ensuring greater provider sustainability
 Alignment with the County Council fee
approach methodology
 Alignment with Connected Lives approach
 Synergies with delivery of the County Council’s
provider review programme
 Relatively quick implementation and benefits
realisation

Programme to work on HPFT contracts

Disbenefits
 Less competition in mental health provision
reduces leverage
 Some providers likely to withdraw from market
and hand back service users

Project E – Provider development programme
Providers delivering mental health services in Hertfordshire vary significantly in their knowledge, skills and approach
to providing support. Many providers are smaller in scale and haven’t modernised their approach to support in
terms of recovery-focused and enabling care.

Agenda Pack Page 21

11

ITEM 3 APPENDIX 1
Business Case

Social Care Transformation in HPFT

This project involves a pilot of commissioning a trainer post through Hertfordshire Care Partners Association to
develop a training programme specifically for mental health providers. They will work closely with HPFT operational
teams to identify providers who need additional training and support.
The primary objective for this project is to help embed recovery-focused support with providers to enable move on
to more independent living. This will have an overall effect of reducing the number of commissioned placements.

Project E - Provider Development Programme
20/21
Non-Pay

£

21/22
£

22/23
£

23/24
£

HCPA commissioned programme

30,000

30,000

-

-

Total

30,000

30,000

-

-

Benefits
 Increase move on rates leading to a reduction
in placements and overall revenue costs
 Consistent training and support for providers
on key aspects of mental health recovery
 Delivered by HCPA who already provide a
range of training for local providers.

Total
£

Comments

Funding 0.6 trainer post in HCPA. Will
60,000 develop and deliver a recoveryfocused training programme to mental
60,000 health providers in Herts.

Disbenefits
 Will not work with out of area providers

Project F – Programme Governance and Charging
As outlined in this business case, there are a range of projects required to deliver the transformation of social care in
HPFT with multiple dependencies and overlaps. This project outlines the resource requirements to provide overall
programme governance and reporting.
Some flexible resource in the form of a the County Council Management Graduate, has also been identified to
support the delivery of a project on financial charging for HPFT service users. Implementing a consistent and reliable
process in this area has been an ongoing challenge for HPFT and the County Council. The area has been identified as
having potential for increasing overall income as to date HPFT service users have mainly not been charged for their
contribution to the cost of their care and support , even where it has been assessed.
It is proposed that 50% of all increase in income collected from Adult MH service users is contributed towards the
efficiencies required from HPFT. This is expected to be c. £90k per annum based on £361k current estimated lost
income.
An independent Critical Friend will be recruited to provide one day of support per quarter for the lifetime of the
programme. This will be someone with a background in delivering social care transformation at a senior-level. They
will provide advice and assurance on strategy and approach to the programme board.

Agenda Pack Page 22

12

ITEM 3 APPENDIX 1
Business Case

Social Care Transformation in HPFT

Project F - Programme Governance and Charging
FYE salary
Post Title
Grade Posts and oncosts £

20/21

21/22
£

22/23
£

23/24
£

Programme Manager

8a

0.5

65,123

32,561

32,561

32,561

-

Graduate trainee

H8

1

43,200

43,200

43,200

-

-

0.5

55,234

27,617

27,617

-

-

103,378
20/21

103,378
21/22

32,561
22/23

Performance and Reporting Lead

7

Pay total
Non-Pay

£

£

£

£

2,000

2,000

-

Other

4,000

4,000

4,000

-

109,378

109,378

38,561

-

Benefits
 Without programme framework and capacity,
transformation and associated efficiency
savings are unlikely to be delivered
 Effective reporting through dedicated
reporting officer to give clear indication of
deliverability
 Independent advice and support on approach
to give assurance.
 Ensuring income maximisation

239,317
Total
£

2,000

Comments

Overall programme manager with
responsibility for co-ordination and
97,684 delivery of programme
From HCC Management Graduate
Scheme. Will focus initially the
financial charging project + floating
capacity - for example during tender
86,400 scoring
Performance and trajectories for
55,234 programme and operational delivery

23/24

Critical friend

Total

Total
£

Comments

Independent advice and assurance to
programme board. One day per
6,000 quarter @£500pd.
Consumerables, communications,
12,000 venues, etc

257,317

Disbenefits
 Risk of detachment from operational delivery

Summary of investment
The overall investment required to deliver the projects outlined is summarised below:

Agenda Pack Page 23

13

ITEM 3 APPENDIX 1
Business Case

Social Care Transformation in HPFT

Summary of business case
20/21
Pay
Project A - Implementing Connected Lives
Project B - Expansion of Intensive Enablement
Project C - Enablement at Home / floating support
Project D - Provider Review Programme
Project E - Provider Development Programme
Project F - Programme Governance and Charging

£

Total Pay
Non-pay
Project A - Implementing Connected Lives
Project B - Expansion of Intensive Enablement
Project C - Enablement at Home / floating support
Project D - Provider Review Programme
Project E - Provider Development Programme
Project F - Programme Governance and Charging

21/22
£

22/23
£

106,535
26,049
122,296
109,240
109,378

106,535
113,533
109,240
109,378

38,561

473,497
20/21

438,686
21/22

38,561
22/23

£

£

23/24
£

£

Total
£

-

213,069
26,049
235,829
218,480
257,317

23/24
£

950,744
Total
£

101,520

124,800
183,040

124,800
91,520

-

30,000
6,000

30,000
6,000

6,000

-

249,600
376,080
60,000
18,000

Total Non-Pay

137,520

343,840

222,320

-

703,680

Total

611,017

782,526

260,881

-

1,654,424

Interfaces
There are a number of interfaces and interdependencies with other existing strategies, governance structures and
programmes. These include:





Mental Health property recycling paper
Connected Lives Delivery Board
HPFT’s – Delivering Value Programme
New Models of Care Board

The programme manager will lead on ensuring all interfaces are appropriate mapped and managed.

Timescales
Draft timescales for delivery are outlined below. Note that go-live dates refer to initial implementation and does not
account for multi-stage projects, for example, with Project A -Implementing Connected Lives.
Timescales for delivery

Project A - Implementing Connected Lives
Project B - Expansion of Intensive Enablement
Project C - Enablement at Home / floating support
Project D - Provider Review Programme
Project E - Provider Development Programme
Project F - Programme Governance and Charging

Q1
M
M
M
GL
GL
N/A

20/21
Q2
Q3
M
M
M
M
M
M
BR
BR
BR
BR
N/A N/A

Q4
M
M
GL
BR
BR
N/A

Q1
GL
GL
BR
BR
BR
N/A

21/22
Q2
Q3
BR
BR
BR
BR
BR
BR
BR
BR
BR
BR
N/A N/A

Q4
BR
BR
BR
BR
BR
N/A

Q1
BR
BR
BR

22/23
Q2
Q3
BR
BR
BR
BR
BR
BR

Q4
BR
BR
BR

Q1
BR
BR
BR

23/24
Q2
Q3
BR
BR
BR
BR
BR
BR

Q4
BR
BR
BR

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Key
M - Mobilisation
GL - Go-live
BR - Benefits realisaton

Agenda Pack Page 24

14

ITEM 3 APPENDIX 1
Business Case

Social Care Transformation in HPFT

Risks
The most significant risk associated with the delivery of social care in mental health arises from the demand-led
nature of costs in this area. Budgets have been under significant pressure for a number of years, being influenced by
an ageing population, reductions in long-stay hospitals and rising expectations of people who need care and their
families. This business case outlines a range of projects to help mitigate and better manage this demand to deliver
the identified revenue efficiency savings.
There are two types of risk associated with the delivery of such a programme:
 Strategic risks – risks relating to whether a strategy is pursued or not
 Programme risks – risks relating to the way the overall programme is delivered
Key strategic risks
Project

Risks of not pursuing the strategy:

Risks of pursuing the strategy

Project A –
Implementing
Connected Lives

Outdated and non-compliant social work
practice and approach not based on principles
of recovery and enablement.

Legally compliant approach which embeds
the principles of prevention, enablement and
recovery in practice to keep people
independent for longer.

Higher long term revenue costs

Effective management of the change process
Project B –
Expansion of
Intensive
Enablement

Lack of capacity to deliver an “enablement
first” approach. Leading to greater levels of
dependency and longer recovery times.

Project C –
Enablement at
Home / Floating
Support

Lack of community provision and quality to
keep people at home resulting in unnecessary
placements.

Provider D –
Provider Review
Programme

Lack of cost control with some providers and
unsustainable fees structures with others.

Improves sustainability whilst delivering
saving efficiencies and consistency.

Lack of consistency, transparency and
flexibility in fees.

Focus on flexible support tailored to an
individual’s needs.

Failure to reduce the number of new
placements and deliver long term revenue
savings.

All individuals who would benefit from an
enablement approach, being given the
opportunity. Promoting quicker recovery and
reducing long-term dependency.

More care delivered at home and preventing
the need for placement and moving away
from community.

Failure to reduce the number of new
placements and deliver long term revenue
savings.

Higher ongoing revenue costs.
Provider E –
Provider
Development

Smaller scale providers continue to have little
access to training and support. Continued lack
of recovery-focused and enabling care.

Greater consistency in training and support
provided in delivering quality support.

Agenda Pack Page 25

15

ITEM 3 APPENDIX 1
Business Case

Social Care Transformation in HPFT

Programme

Long lengths of stay in placements which
increases overall numbers and costs.

Provider F –
Programme
Governance and
Charging

Lack of co-ordinated approach resulting in
failure to deliver transformation ambitions at
required scale and pace

Capacity to deliver.

Key programme risks
Risk

Likelihood Impact

Organisational structure and
governance

High

High

Not delivering savings to scale or within
time

Medium

High

Practice and culture in order to deliver a
strengths-based, risk positive approach
to care

Medium

Medium

Increased risks around community care
(service user risk e.g. safety)

Medium

Medium

Capacity of management time

Medium

Medium

Access to general needs housing to
support step down

Medium

Medium

Growing demand

Medium

Medium

Provider engagement and management

Low

Medium

Impact to acute/DTC

Low

Low

Mitigation
Programme board set up but no clear
performance and management structure
to provider oversight, deliver trajectories
and assign savings targets to schemes.
Programme and benefits management
plan. Monthly performance reviews.
Comprehensive annual reviews and
trajectory setting with oversight from TMG
and DV.
WS1 will include training and development
programme for staff + whole programme
will be based around Connected Lives
principles. Embedding holistic risk
assessment principles into practice.
MDT step down planning for all individuals
combined with clearer pathways and
services in the community to support.
ITT bid requests significant investment in
dedicated resource to deliver programme.
Engaging with district councils and
providers in regards to supporting step
down to general needs.
Connected lives approach and investment
in enabling services to manage demand.
Tendering exercise, including provider
engagement is a key component of
programme.
Reducing reliance on placements and
investing in better community provision
should reduce delays overall.

Agenda Pack Page 26

16

ITEM 3 Appendix 2

1.

Who is completing the EqIA1 and why is it being done?

Title of service / proposal / project / strategy /
procurement you are assessing2

Social Care Transformation in Hertfordshire Partnership Foundation NHS
Trust

Names of those involved in completing the EqIA

Kate Linhart and Andrew Godfrey

Head of Service or Business Manager

Mike Barrett

Team/Department

Learning Disability and Forensic Strategic Business Unit

Lead officer contact details

Husnara Malik

Agenda Pack Page 27

Focus of EqIA – what are you assessing?3
What are the aims of the service, proposal, project?
What outcomes do you want to achieve?
What are the reasons for the proposal or change?
Do you need to reference/consider any related
projects?

Hertfordshire Partnership Foundation Trust (HPFT) is committed to achieving diversity
and equality of opportunity both as a large employer of people and as a provider and
commissioner of services. We strive to go beyond our duty to ensure that our practice
in diversity and equality is embedded in everything we do. Against a background of
tough economic times and a changing demography we need to be even more aware of
the diverse needs of communities and how we can support them.
This EqIA examines the strategic ambition that HPFT has to deliver the Social Care
Transformation programme estimated at £3.6m p.a. social care savings by 2023/24
through developing preventative and enabling outcomes focused practice and
community provision that can maximise opportunities for independence and reduce
dependence on long term commissioned care and social care placements.
This ambition has been developed with Hertfordshire County Council and HPFT as
partners under an agreement made in accordance with Section 75 of the National
Health Service Act 2006 to jointly provide mental health services to persons of all ages.
Under the agreement the partners agree to jointly discharge functions on each other’s
behalf and provide appropriate facilities so that mental health services in the county
can be better integrated.
The Social Care Transformation programme will enable people who experience mental
illness, most particularly those who have care and support needs have equal
opportunities for active participation within their communities and citizenship.
The Social Care Transformation programme aims to achieve the following objectives:-

1

Objective 1 – Improve social work practice and compliance with the legal framework
Objective 2 – Promote prevention, independent living and recovery principles in all
practice and services
Objective 3 – Deliver financial savings of £3.6m savings by 2023/24
Objective 4 – Increase personalised care and reduce reliance on accommodation
based provision
Objective 5 – Reduce delayed transfers of care due to delays in social care
Objective 6 – Reduce numbers of individuals in placements which are away from their
community.

Agenda Pack Page 28

It is expected that the delivery of the Social Care Transformation programme will
provide a variety of positive impacts:
 Increases choice for residents living in the local community by increasing the
range of services, care and support options available to them
 Flexible Care & Support services that are self-sustaining and value for money
 Improved resident experience
 More Hertfordshire residents with care and support needs remaining within
 their own home for longer
 Benefits to the wider health system and NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups,
including reductions in hospital admissions and quicker hospital discharges
 Improvement in social work practice and delivery to enable a shift towards
prevention and enablement
 Reduces long term revenue costs
 Alignment between the County Court and HPFT in practice and approach
 Compliance with the legal framework (ie, Care Act)
 Consistent approach with shared community providers
 Expanded provision to ensure an “enablement first” approach
 Better use of assets – disposals of underutilised properties
 Focus on flexible, outcomes-based support – allows support to flex up or down
based on need
 Clearer pathways and services for staff and service users
 Improves contracting and invoicing processes
 Ensures compliance with procurement regulations
 Ensuring greater provider sustainability
 Alignment with County Council charging policy
 Alignment with the Connected Lives approach
 Synergies with delivery of the County Council’s ’s provider review programme
 Relatively quick implementation and benefits realisation

2

The drivers supporting the delivery of the Social Care Transformation programme
include:
National
 Further embedding the personalisation agenda
Local





Delivery of £3.6m efficiency savings by 2023/24
Implementing Connected Lives
ACS’s Provider Review Programme
HPFTs Good to Great Strategy

Agenda Pack Page 29

The County Council and HPFT have developed an ambitious efficiencies programme
to deliver a 15% reduction in revenue spend on the social care budget devolved by
2023/24. This amounts to a 4% per year efficiency and £18.5m in total savings over
the four years.
The Care Act 2014 ( the Act) promotes the wellbeing of individuals and that it must be
at the centre of all it does. Providers must act to promote wellbeing whenever they
carry out any care and support functions for individuals. This includes considering the
physical, mental and emotional wellbeing of individuals with care needs. There is also
more of an emphasis on outcomes that are important to the person, prevention and
helping people to connect with their local community. The Act’s Statutory guidance
says: “Building on the principles of the Mental Capacity Act, local authorities should

3

assume that individuals themselves know best their own outcomes, goals and
wellbeing.” Considering individuals views and wishes is also key to this person-centred
approach to providing care and support.

Agenda Pack Page 30

Central to the Social Care Transformation programme will be aligning the care
workforce in HPFT and the provider market (objective 1), applying the County
Council’s ’s Connected Lives principles; a social work practise model that Prevents,
Enables and Connects a whole service approach to community practice, personalised
enablement and new models of commissioning. The model itself sets out standards,
principles and approaches for staff delivering services. It places more emphasis on
prevention and enablement and supporting people to live the life they want. By
embedding the Connected Lives approach in HPFT, there will be an improved
approach to social work practice in line with the principles set down in the Care Act .
This will place a greater emphasis on prevention and enablement care before
considering longer-term commissioned options. It will also ensure that care is
commissioned on an outcomes basis. The overall effect will see an increase in
individuals being supported in the community and a reduction in placement. More
information on the County Councils Connected Lives principles is available here.
This programme delivers a number of projects and schemes with the primary focus of
reducing accommodation-based provision ie, placements, in favour of preventative and
enabling care. The business case outlines those projects and the required investment
required to deliver the savings from 2020/21, including expected phasing.
HPFT want to work with and stimulate the market to develop the capacity needed to
enable a strategic shift away from residential and supported living services.
Given the demographic and legislative pressures, HPFT faces unprecedented financial
challenges in meeting care and support needs in Hertfordshire.
Working together, with the County Council , HPFT has the chance to plan for the right
types of commissioned services in the community for Hertfordshire residents, provide
services in key locations that improves people quality of life and maximise the use of
assets and an opportunity of maximising value for money.
It is not the intention of HPFT to propose a single ‘model’ of transforming services but
to develop commissioned services in response to local circumstances and
requirements, to provide a diversity of community services across the County that is
aligned to HPFT’s Quality strategy of ‘Great Care, Great Outcomes’.
HPFT does not intend to suggest that all commissioned community services are a

4

panacea for the needs of people who need support. Some people’s support needs will
continue to be met in permanent residential/nursing and supported living placements
where this is appropriate.
Where possible, this EqIA will outline any potential impacts that are foreseen as a
result of delivering the strategic ambition, recognising that the associated papers
primarily provide information, proposals and a direction of travel concerning use of
transforming social care services.

Agenda Pack Page 31

Stakeholders
Who will be affected?
Which protected characteristics (see end-notes 11-20)
is it most relevant to?
Consider the public, service users, partners, staff,
Members, etc

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Individuals with mental health issues referred to HPFT
Existing HPFT Service Users
Women pre and post-natal
Elderly
Public
Family and Friends
Carers
Carers in Herts
Hertfordshire Partnership NHS University Foundation Trust Staff
Herts Valley Clinical Commissioning Group (HVCCG)
East & North Clinical Commissioning Group (ENCCG)
Adult Care Services (Hertfordshire County Council)
0-25 Children’s Services (Hertfordshire County Council)
GPs
NHS England
Voluntary and third sector organisations
Individuals in the Criminal Justice Services
Current Residents of accommodation with care and support
Adult Care Commissioners
NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups
Hertfordshire County Council Adult Social Care Locality Teams
Borough & District Housing Departments and Planners
Landlords & Housing Providers of Existing Schemes & Services
Care Providers including Community and Placement providers
Workforce
Primary Care
User Involvement Organisations

As part of the overall programme business case, a Communication Strategy is to be

5

developed to ensure that effective communications with ALL key stakeholders on the
delivery of the programme and specific communication messages for each project
identified in the business case will be maintained throughout the programme and will
be subject to ongoing review. Our work will also be aligned to HPFT and the County
Council’s co-production principles and the triangle of care model and Carers Strategy.
Recommendations from this strategy will be utilised to inform the need for any further
key stakeholder communication/ consultation in respect of the delivery of the
programme. This will include, as a minimum regular briefings to HPFT Executive
Boards, HCC’s committee boards including County Councils Cabinet, Panel and
Health and Wellbeing Board and all other relevant boards, where required to attend.

Agenda Pack Page 32

2.
List of data sources used for this EqIA (include relevant national/local data, research, monitoring information,
service user feedback, complaints, audits, consultations, EqIAs from other projects or other local authorities, etc.)
A range of useful local data on our communities can be found on Herts Insight and on the Equalities Hub

Title and brief description
(of data, research or engagement – include hyperlinks if available)

Date

Gaps in data
Consider any gaps you need to address
and add any relevant actions to the
action plan in Section 4.

ASCOF Short and Long Term (SALT) data 2018/19

May 2019

No gaps in data

National Minimum Mental Health Data Set

2018/19

No gaps in data

2018/19

There is no reliable information on those who
prefer not to confirm their religious views on
how ones religious beliefs have an impact on
services they access.

Herts Insight Diversity Profile

Source: Office for National Statistics 2011 Census, Table KS209EW
Stated Religion for those living in Hertfordshire at 2011

6

LGBT Community Report
https://www.stonewall.org.uk/system/files/lgbt_in_britain__trans_report_final.pdf

2017

There is no reliable information on how
many people in the UK identify as
transgender only those who have been
awarded a Gender recognition Certificate

Adult Care Service Information system (ACSIS)

2019

No gaps in data

Projecting Adult Needs and Service Information (PANSI)

2018

No gaps in data

Projecting Older People population Information System (POPPI)

2018

No gaps in data

2012- 2017

No gaps in data

National Health Service England (NHSE)
https://www.england.nhs.uk/

2014

No gaps in data

The greenlight toolkit
https://www.ndti.org.uk/uploads/files/Green_Light_Toolkit_22_Nov_2013_final.pdf

2013

The Green light toolkit will be monitored
regularly

Office for National Statistics (ONS)
https://www.ons.gov.uk/

Agenda Pack Page 33

Carers Strategy
https://www.hpft.nhs.uk/media/1062/carer-strategy-may-2013.pdf

2013-2017

This is due to be renewed

Triangle of Care
https://www.hpft.nhs.uk/media/1062/carer-strategy-may-2013.pdf

2013

This is due to be renewed

LGBT
http://www.queerfutures.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/06/Queer-FuturesSummary-Report.pdf
Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity
https://cypiapt.files.wordpress.com/2017/04/so-and-gi-clinicians-guide-03-0417.pdf

7

2015

2017

There is no reliable information on how
many people in the UK identify as
transgender only those who have been
awarded a Gender recognition Certificate
There is no reliable information on how
many people in the UK identify as
transgender only those who have been
awarded a Gender recognition Certificate

Sexual identity estimates are based on
social survey data from the Annual
Population Survey (APS). The questions
collect information on self-perceived
sexual identity from the household
population aged 16 and over in the UK.
Age Public Health profile

Agenda Pack Page 34

HPFT Quality Strategy

8

2013-2017

No gaps in data

2019-2024

No gaps in data

3.

Analysis and assessment: review of information, impact analysis and mitigating actions

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know4?
What do people tell you5?
Summary of data and feedback about
service users and the wider
community/ public





Agenda Pack Page 35

Age8

Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes?
Why?

The population for people of all ages
resident in Hertfordshire is 1,180,900.
Approximately 16% of Hertfordshire’s
population are aged 65 years and
over (173,915). It is predicted that this
will significantly increase over the
next 20 years showing an increase
over more than 50% over the next 20
years.
There are higher concentrations of
those aged 65/85 years or more in
Dacorum, North Herts, St Albans,
Welwyn Hatfield and Three Rivers.
13.1% of Hertfordshire’ older
population is considered to be living
in poverty. Districts with higher levels
of deprivation are in Broxbourne,
Hertsmere Stevenage, North
Hertfordshire and Watford.

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)6?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here
Although the transformation
programme is obviously intended to
have a positive impact on all people
that use it, we do recognise likelihood
of differential impact on some groups’
The Mental Health Minimum data set
indicates that although some people
with mental health may be less likely to
access services i.e. those that are
resistant to support, the Connected
Lives model will have a positive impact
through personalising the care and
support they receive.

What can you do7?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce or avoid
the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a ‘level playing field’
– e.g. consultation materials in easy read or hold
targeted engagement events
If there is no current way of mitigating any
negative impacts, clearly state that here and
consider other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
With regards to this protected characteristics;
there will need to be a multi-pronged approach
i.e. community and outreach services for those
who are unable or less inclined to get to actual
clinics, access to services at convenient times to
suit people of different ages. The development of
virtual clinics and other assistive technology to
support this group.
Mitigation;
There is a greater emphasis on personalising
support to meet peoples needs specific needs,
preferences and circumstances.
HPFT staff and providers will be full trained in
Connected Lives Principles to support this
protected characteristics.

Adult Mental Health see age public
health figures in section 2

9

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know4?
What do people tell you5?
Summary of data and feedback about
service users and the wider
community/ public





Agenda Pack Page 36
Disability9

Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes?
Why?

Children and Adolescent Mental
Health
(see age public health figures in
section 2)

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)6?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here

Children and Young People that are or
will be transitioning into Adult Mental
Health services and will continue to
have social care needs will be affected
by this change.

85% of people receiving
commissioned care are support are
between 29-68 years old
The Mental Health Minimum data set
indicates that 17% of adults in
Hertfordshire (16-74) have a common
MH disorder
According to the Census 2011, there
are around 26,000 people in
Hertfordshire have a learning
disability. Over 50% of these people
were above the age of 45 and 32 %
over 55. It is estimated that the
percentage of people with a learning
disability will grow substantially during
the lifetime of this contract and
therefore work on improving
pathways will need to be monitored.

HPFT work positively with all
disabilities groups, specifically in
overcoming physical social and
psychological barriers. The social care
transformation programme should have
a positive impact on All people with
Disabilities.

10

What can you do7?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce or avoid
the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a ‘level playing field’
– e.g. consultation materials in easy read or hold
targeted engagement events
If there is no current way of mitigating any
negative impacts, clearly state that here and
consider other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
HPFT will ensure this is aligned and considered
within the broader Child and Adolescent Mental
health services (Camhs) transformation.
HPFT will work with the transformation leads to
ensure that the impact and implications are
clearly identified as part of the transitioning
pathway. Camhs and young people will be
represented.

HPFT staff will have appropriate training in
Equality and positively support applications for
staff with Mental Health disabilities doing their
best to provide a ‘level playing field’. Attitudes
stigma physical, psychological and social
barriers to services will be at the forefront of all
transformation of services. The Connected Lives
principles will support staff in removing barriers
to supporting individuals with disabilities. Along
with the Green Light Tool kit which is a guide to
auditing and improving mental health services so
that they are effective in supporting people with
mental health needs.

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know4?
What do people tell you5?
Summary of data and feedback about
service users and the wider
community/ public





Agenda Pack Page 37
Gender
reassignment10

Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes?
Why?

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)6?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here

What can you do7?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce or avoid
the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a ‘level playing field’
– e.g. consultation materials in easy read or hold
targeted engagement events
If there is no current way of mitigating any
negative impacts, clearly state that here and
consider other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.

HPFT provides an array of services in
Hertfordshire. These services are
specialised services for adults
including Older adults with Mental
Health needs. This excludes people
with dementia or other cognitive
impairments.
The latest (mid-2017) estimate puts
the population of Hertfordshire at
578,500 males and 602,500 females.
As at mid-2017, the estimated total
population of Hertfordshire had
increased by approximately 64,900
(5.8%) since the 2011 Census.
In 2009-10, 290 people in the UK had
been awarded a Gender Recognition
Certificate (GRC).
https://data.gov.uk/dataset/0bbb87addada-4482-8e16cacb641bfb33/gender-recognitioncertificate-statistics

HPFT staff will have appropriate training in
Equality and recruit staff from diverse
backgrounds which will assist them to effectively
work with the public and service users.
HPFT work positively with all groups,
specifically in overcoming physical
social and psychological barriers. The
social care transformation programme
should have a positive impact on All
people identified in this protected
characteristic.

However, there is no reliable
information on how many people in
the UK identify as transgender.
Some estimates suggest gender

11

Monitoring sexual orientation and gender identity
helps your service to understand who is and who
is not using your service. However, it can be
really difficult for some young people to share
information about their sexual orientation or
gender identity due to concerns confidentiality or
Re negative consequences. As well as this,
some monitoring forms might not give options
that the young person feels comfortable with. It
is important to consider
these potential issues when developing
monitoring forms and when they are given to
young people to fill out.”

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know4?
What do people tell you5?
Summary of data and feedback about
service users and the wider
community/ public





Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes?
Why?

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)6?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here

Agenda Pack Page 38

reassignment rate to be 20 per
100,000 people in the UK. This would
suggest there are around 10,000, of
which 6,000 would have gone
through transition. Year on year the
number of people presenting
increases by 15%, if this trend
continues it means the number of
trans gendered people could double
every five years. The median age of
those presenting for treatment is 42
years old. These estimates do not
take into account those who transition
through private medical care - this is
based solely on NHS statistics.
If the rate of 20 per 100,000 people
estimated for the UK is applied to
Hertfordshire for those aged 15 or
over, it would mean there were
around 183 transgender people in the
County.

What can you do7?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce or avoid
the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a ‘level playing field’
– e.g. consultation materials in easy read or hold
targeted engagement events
If there is no current way of mitigating any
negative impacts, clearly state that here and
consider other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
https://cypiapt.files.wordpress.com/2017/04/soand-gi-clinicians-guide-03-04-17.pdf
HPFT have service user surveys to capture the
experiences for groups of different
characteristics. HPFT will be promoting further
collection of the information collated as currently
it is difficult to draw conclusions due to the low
uptake. The service user survey has been
reviewed and amended to better include people
from the trans community (refer to section 4,
action plan).

45% of trans gender people have the
potential increase in prevalence of
depression and anxiety and
increased risk of suicidality attempts,
reported in Stonewall 2017.

12

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know4?
What do people tell you5?
Summary of data and feedback about
service users and the wider
community/ public





Agenda Pack Page 39

Pregnancy and
maternity11

Race12

Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes?
Why?

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)6?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here

What can you do7?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce or avoid
the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a ‘level playing field’
– e.g. consultation materials in easy read or hold
targeted engagement events
If there is no current way of mitigating any
negative impacts, clearly state that here and
consider other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.

There are concerns that current
statistics do not capture the true
numbers of individuals with protected
characteristics especially relating to
Gender Identity as well as a lack of
trust in speaking about their mental
Health.
http://www.queerfutures.co.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2016/06/QueerFutures-Summary-Report.pdf
There is a potential for women who
become pregnant or woman who
have existing mental illness to
become more unwell or to develop
the first onset of mental illness; to
There is also potential for a lack of
joint-up between mental health
services, primary care and children
services, which means their needs
may not be appropriately met.
81% of Hertfordshire’s population is
White British which is similar to
England, but the proportions of other
ethnic groups vary considerably
between districts. This has increased
by 8% since 2001.
Watford, Welwyn Hatfield and

The social care transformation
programme will have a positive impact
as we on this group.

The Mental Health minimum data set
indicates that 20% of people currently
receiving long term commissioned
social care support in relation to a
mental disorder are from BMEA group
HPFT provides services which are

13

HPFT staff are aware of services offered to this
group and are trained to appropriately refer this
group to the relevant services. HPFT staff offer
training and practise development to staff in
other services such as primary care and children
services.
HPFT staff will have appropriate training in
Equality and staffs are recruited from diverse
backgrounds which will assist them to effectively
work with the public and service users from all
ethnicities in line with Connected Lives
principles.

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know4?
What do people tell you5?
Summary of data and feedback about
service users and the wider
community/ public





Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes?
Why?

Agenda Pack Page 40

Hertsmere have some of the highest
proportions of people from other
ethnic groups; there are also
relatively high proportions of “White
Other” in Three Rivers, Stevenage
and Broxbourne (i.e. non UK
European Union).
In Broxbourne, Stevenage, Welwyn
Hatfield, Hertsmere and Watford,
over 2% of the population is African;
St. Albans district has the highest
proportion of Bangladeshi people in
Hertfordshire (1.9%).
88% of hate crime in Hertfordshire is
racial. On average 95 such crimes
are committed in Hertfordshire each
month with the highest district rate
being in Watford (17.5per month)
Almost 150,000 people in
Hertfordshire (13%) were born
outside of the UK, with the highest
proportions being in Watford (25%),
Welwyn Hatfield (17%) and
Hertsmere (17%). Language The top
three languages in spoken in
Hertfordshire are English, Urdu and
Polish.

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)6?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*

What can you do7?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce or avoid
the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a ‘level playing field’
– e.g. consultation materials in easy read or hold
targeted engagement events

* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here

If there is no current way of mitigating any
negative impacts, clearly state that here and
consider other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
accessible to individuals from all races Promote an increase in self-referrals into the
and ethnicities. HPFT have promoted
services, through targeted publicity campaigns
their services through campaigns and
and ensure that the process is visible,
publicity to be an all welcoming service. welcoming and sensitive to the characteristics of
all types of people who require the service. (See
prioritised action plan in section 4 below)
We will also ensure that services are available in
different languages and formats to meet needs
of those who need it

14

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know4?
What do people tell you5?
Summary of data and feedback about
service users and the wider
community/ public





Agenda Pack Page 41

Religion or
belief13

Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes?
Why?

According to the information available
from Census 2011(see Above),
Hertfordshire’s religious community is
composed of 58.25% as Christian,
2.75% as Muslim 1.93% as Hindu,
1.91% as Jewish, 0.45% as Sikh and
0.45% as other, 26.53% of the
population in Hertfordshire said they
did not have a religion and a further
7.23% preferred not to say.
The fact that 7.23% of the population
of Hertfordshire preferred not to say
does not help to reflect an accurate
portrayal of peoples beliefs/religions

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)6?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here

HPFT services are equally accessible
to any individuals who either follow a
religion or who do not.
HPFT do not have sufficient qualitative
information to ascertain whether
barriers exist to people who follow a
different religion or not.

What can you do7?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce or avoid
the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a ‘level playing field’
– e.g. consultation materials in easy read or hold
targeted engagement events
If there is no current way of mitigating any
negative impacts, clearly state that here and
consider other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
HPFT staff will have appropriate training in
Equality and staffs are recruited from diverse
backgrounds which will assist them to effectively
work with the public and service users from all
ethnicities in line with Connected Lives
principles.
Promote an increase through primary care
services and other publicity campaigns to ensure
that the campaign is wide reaching and is visible,
welcoming and sensitive to the characteristics of
all types of people who require the service.
Embedding Connected Lives will ensure
additional focus on natural community support
networks, such as faith groups, to support
people in developing and benefiting from
informal support network that are congruent with
their religious and spiritual beliefs.
We will also ensure that services are available in
different languages and formats to meet needs
of those who need it.

15

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know4?
What do people tell you5?
Summary of data and feedback about
service users and the wider
community/ public





Agenda Pack Page 42
Sex/Gender14

Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes?
Why?

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)6?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here
Adult care services information system
indicates that 60% of people receiving
commissioned care and support in
relation to their mental health are male.

The population for people of all ages
resident in Hertfordshire is 1,180,900.
There are 578,500 Males and
602,500 Females.
There are 24,000 more females living
in the county than males.

HPFT offer an array of services which
are accessible to individuals of all
genders. Transformation of services
will not be gender specific and
therefore no differential impact is
anticipated.

What can you do7?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce or avoid
the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a ‘level playing field’
– e.g. consultation materials in easy read or hold
targeted engagement events
If there is no current way of mitigating any
negative impacts, clearly state that here and
consider other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
HPFT staff will have appropriate training in
Equality and staffs are recruited from diverse
backgrounds which will assist them to effectively
work with the public and service users in line
with Connected Lives principles. Any new
services commissioned will have monitoring
arrangements in place to continue to robustly
assess the service preferences for males and
females to mitigate against any known or
potential risk factors.
HPFT are committed to ensure that gender
appropriate services are available such as single
sex wards and is also considering in allocation of
staffing particularly for those that may have a
history of physical or sexual abuse. In addition
we ensure flexible in appointments to remove
barriers to accessing services, such as childcare
arrangements. The development of virtual clinics
will enhance accessibility further.

Hertfordshire population is 51.02%
Females and 48.97% Males.
Men and women may have certain
service requirements and preferences
that need to be considered
particularly in relation to specific
community service requirements and
assessing the appropriateness and
any risk factors around access to
shared services in the community.

Improvement in personalised care planning will
ensure that staff are more aware of gender
specific support within the community and can
support people in accessing this were
appropriate.

16

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know4?
What do people tell you5?
Summary of data and feedback about
service users and the wider
community/ public





Agenda Pack Page 43

Sexual
orientation15

Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes?
Why?

ONS figures highlight the latest
statistics
In 2017, estimates from the Annual
Population Survey (APS) showed that
93.2% of the UK population identified
as heterosexual or straight and 2.0%
of the population identified
themselves as lesbian, gay or
bisexual (LGB).
This comprised of:1.2% identifying as gay or lesbian
0.8% identifying as bisexual
4.1% refused, or did not know how to
identify themselves.
0.5% of the population identified
themselves as “Other”, which means
that they did not consider themselves
to fit into the heterosexual or straight,
bisexual, gay or lesbian categories.

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)6?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here
Adult care services information system
indicates that 1% people receiving
commissioned social care support
identify as gay or bisexual.
Adult care services information system
indicates that 20% of people receiving
commissioned social care support
refused to or did not state their sexual
orientation
HPFT provides services which are
accessible to all people irrespective of
their sexual orientation.
HPFT do not have sufficient qualitative
information to ascertain whether
barriers exist on sexual orientation.
Improvement in personalised care
planning will ensure that staff are more
aware of specific support within the
community for people from LGBT
communities and also social groups or
resources that may enhance a person’s
access to this community.

17

What can you do7?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce or avoid
the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a ‘level playing field’
– e.g. consultation materials in easy read or hold
targeted engagement events
If there is no current way of mitigating any
negative impacts, clearly state that here and
consider other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
HPFT staff will have appropriate training in
Equality and staffs are recruited from diverse
backgrounds which will assist them to effectively
work with the public and service users in line
with Connected Lives principles. Any new
services commissioned will have monitoring
arrangements in place to continue to robustly
assess the service preferences for LGBT to
mitigate against any known or potential risk
factors.
Staff will be supported to enhance their
knowledge in working with people from LGBT
communities and the issues of stigma and
barriers to expression of sexual identity such as
religion and race and conflicts with personal of
family belief systems.

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know4?
What do people tell you5?
Summary of data and feedback about
service users and the wider
community/ public





Agenda Pack Page 44

Marriage and
civil
partnership16

Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes?
Why?

The data shows that 289,895 people
were single 445,151 were married
75,744 divorced or formerly in a civil
partnership, 22,066 separated,
58,326 are widowed or the surviving
partner from a civil partnership and
1,356 are in a civil partnership. There
is no significant difference between
these figures and those the east of
England and England although the
percentage for civil partnerships in
Hertfordshire is 0.15 % for the East of
England and England it is 0.18% and
0.23% respectively which indicates
there are significantly (>5%) less
people in civil partnerships in
Hertfordshire in comparison to
statistics for England

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)6?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here
HPFT provides services which are
accessible to all irrespective of
Marriage or Civil partnership status. No
differential impact is anticipated for this
group.

What can you do7?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce or avoid
the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a ‘level playing field’
– e.g. consultation materials in easy read or hold
targeted engagement events
If there is no current way of mitigating any
negative impacts, clearly state that here and
consider other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
HPFT staff will have appropriate training in
Equality and staffs are recruited from diverse
backgrounds which will assist them to effectively
work with the public and service users in line
with Connected Lives principles. Any new
services commissioned will have monitoring
arrangements in place to continue to robustly
assess the service preferences for this group to
mitigate against any known or potential risk
factors.
Staff will work within the Triangle of Care model
for involving carers in a persons care, to ensure
that the support given by a person’s spouse or
civil partner is recognised and appropriate
support is given.
Staff will be appropriately skilled to identify
systemic issues and conflicts that may be
impacting on a person’s mental health and
support the person’s to access appropriate
support. If there are issues of abuse or neglect
staff will enact safeguarding adult process.

18

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know4?
What do people tell you5?
Summary of data and feedback about
service users and the wider
community/ public





Agenda Pack Page 45

Carers17

Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes?
Why?

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)6?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here
A positive impact is anticipated in line
with Co-production principles, Carers
Strategy and Triangle of Care model.
Carers will have a central role to play in
transforming social care services this
includes planning and redesigning of
new services, input in new assessment
frameworks, and support in
commissioning of new services

The Census 20111 reported that there
were 108,615 carers living in
Hertfordshire, equivalent to 9.8% of
the population.

There could be a potential negative
impact on carer expectations of
services and dependence and
familiarity on current provision. Many
people and families who are currently
receiving long term commissioned
placements and other social care may
be fearful of changes to this
arrangement and the implications for
themselves and their families.

What can you do7?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce or avoid
the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a ‘level playing field’
– e.g. consultation materials in easy read or hold
targeted engagement events
If there is no current way of mitigating any
negative impacts, clearly state that here and
consider other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
The Wellbeing Principle within the Care Act 2014
are the outcomes that HPFT must seek to
achieve with each carer they support, based on
an individual and personalised assessment of
each carers particular needs and wishes.
The Care Act 2014 places specific duties to
recognise and support carers, including access
to commission support where appropriate HPFT
will continue to work to enhance the delivery of
these duties.
HPFT have a Carers Strategy that is currently
being reviewed and work co-productively with
carers in the review, development and delivery
of services. Carers from different religious,
cultural backgrounds and carers from LGBT
communities are represented within our carer
council and carer engagement groups
HPFT continue to collect feedback from carers
from a variety of sources including the Friends
and families survey.
Carers and Carer Representation groups will be

19

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know4?
What do people tell you5?
Summary of data and feedback about
service users and the wider
community/ public





Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes?
Why?

Agenda Pack Page 46
Other relevant
groups18
Consider if there is
a potential impact
(positive or
negative) on areas
such as health
and wellbeing,
crime and
disorder, Armed
Forces
community.

Particular groups of people with
protected characteristic are more
likely to experience mental disorders
and more likely to experience poorer
outcomes as a result of that mental
disorder. Practical and cultural
barriers to accessing statutory and
non-statutory exist for certain groups
and communities that impact on
likelihood of achieving positive
outcomes from service provision.

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)6?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here

The social care transformation
programme is focused at improving
and developing support for people
within their communities and ensuring
that our practice focuses on utilising a
person’s natural support network.
This will have a positive impact on
people having access to personalised
support that better meets their
individual needs and provides greater
opportunities for independence and
connectivity within their communities.
Risk enablement will be a key
component in enabling greater choice
and control for individuals over their
lives. For many people this will have a
positive impact on their quality of life

20

What can you do7?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce or avoid
the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a ‘level playing field’
– e.g. consultation materials in easy read or hold
targeted engagement events
If there is no current way of mitigating any
negative impacts, clearly state that here and
consider other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
actively engaged with as part of the social care
transformation programme through stakeholder
panels, expert by experience representation on
relevant groups and other mechanisms such as
surveys and focus groups. This feedback will
inform the social care transformation and service
development going forward.

Key steps that will be taken to mitigate against
the negative impacts or perceived negative
impacts to service users and carers will be:-






Stakeholder involvement within
transformation programme
Easy read information on Connected
Lives and assessment and care planning
practice
Staff training in Connected Lives
approach and practice skills
Personalised approach to care
management that focuses on shared
decision making and collaborative risk
management approaches

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know4?
What do people tell you5?
Summary of data and feedback about
service users and the wider
community/ public





Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes?
Why?

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)6?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here

Agenda Pack Page 47

and remove barriers to social inclusion.
However in some instances a positive
risk approach could lead to risks being
realised and negative outcomes for
individuals.

21

What can you do7?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce or avoid
the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a ‘level playing field’
– e.g. consultation materials in easy read or hold
targeted engagement events
If there is no current way of mitigating any
negative impacts, clearly state that here and
consider other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.

Opportunity to advance equality of opportunity and/or foster good relations19



Enhance equality of opportunity for full community inclusion and citizenship for people experiencing mental illness
Understand and address gaps in current service provision that contribute to poorer outcomes for individuals with certain protected
characteristics or who are otherwise disadvantaged

Conclusion of your analysis and assessment - select one of the outcomes below20 and summarise why you have selected i, ii, iii or iv;
what you think the most important impacts are; and the key actions you will take.

Agenda Pack Page 48

SUMMARY

OUTCOME AND NEXT STEPS
i.
-

No equality impacts identified
No major change required to proposal

ii. Minimal equality impacts identified
- Adverse impacts have been identified, but have been objectively
justified (provided you do not unlawfully discriminate)
- Ensure decision makers consider the cumulative effect of how a
number of decisions impact on equality
- No major change required to proposal
The Social Care transformation programme will encompass the interest
and equalities of all the above groups with protected characteristics, this
will be a fundamental to new service delivery and social work practise.
However some adverse impacts have been identified and are addressed
in the action plan below.
iii. Potential equality impacts identified
- Take ‘mitigating action’ to change the original policy/proposal,
remove barriers or better advance equality
- Set out clear actions in the action plan in section 4.

Mitigation
The plan to achieve the required efficiency savings is through a quality
improvement approach aimed to ensure that all service users benefit from
preventative and enabling support that maximises their opportunity for
good outcomes.
Those individuals who currently experience a greater loss of choice,
control and independence are likely to benefit the most from this
transformation and the provision of services and support that are

22

personalised and community based thus promoting equality of opportunity
and full citizenship.
Gap analysis and market development will enable us to better understand
and meet the needs of people and communities who currently experience
discrimination or disadvantage in accessing services and support.
iv. Major equality impacts identified
- The adverse effects are not justified, cannot be mitigated or show
unlawful discrimination
- You must stop and remove the policy
[you should consult with Legal Services]
- Ensure decision makers understand the equality impact

YOU SHOULD INCLUDE THE SUMMARY ANALYSIS ABOVE IN THE ‘Equalities Implications’ SECTION OF ANY REPORT(S) THAT
GO TO DEPT. MANAGEMENT BOARDS / MEMBER PANELS / CABINET, AS WELL AS APPENDING A COPY OF THE EqIA

Agenda Pack Page 49
23

4.

Prioritised Action Plan21

Impact identified and
group(s) affected

Action planned
Include actions relating to:

Expected outcome

Measure of success

Lead officer and
timeframe

• mitigation measures
• getting further research
• getting further data/consultation
NB: These actions must now be transferred to service or business plans and monitored/reviewed to ensure they achieve the outcomes identified.

Agenda Pack Page 50

Adults with mental health are
more likely to be affected by
new service transformation. In
some circumstances people with
mental health will have greater
difficulties coping with any new
transformation change HPFT
wish to introduce.

It is believed, although there is
limited data, that there are LGBT
people with mental health who
may be in care currently but
don’t feel comfortable with
people knowing, or people who
require care and are LGBT, who
do not feel confident to access
services or in fear of the
negativity they may face.
Gender reassignment/Sexual
Orientation
Reporting and monitoring

A clear communication strategy that
includes marketing information, and
advice on new service delivery,
existing service users of care
schemes, carers and partners and
HPFT staff.
Consideration will be taken into the
means of communication, so that it’s
accessible to all. This could include
written information and face to face
meetings. Accessibility needs in
communications will also be
considered, such as large print.
As part of the provider tendering for
community services there will be a
clear requirement for residents and
carers who present themselves as
LGBT for providers to demonstrate
their equality process.
There will be a need for staff training
to improve understanding of the
needs of service users who are
LGBT
HPFT have an established
Equalities Steering Group that
focuses on protected characteristics
and equality issues and specifically
identified the need for an increase
focused on recording and

All to be notified of the
communication strategy
that is relevant for the
public. All
communication will be
published in a timely
manner so that it
provides all our
stakeholders with ample
time to respond to any
concerns.
Services will be
appropriate for LGBT
Use of language will be
appropriate and unoffensive at all times.

Identifying the needs of
this group and
developing appropriate
services

24

Communications
distributed within
timeframe, and to all those
who require notification, in
formats that are
accessible to them.

Husnara Malik

HPFT to ensure that care
Husnara Malik
providers is up to date with
equalities training and any
updates in legislation.
A successful service will
have all staff members
fully trained in all areas of
equality.

Satisfaction surveys and
focus group feedback

Inclusion and
Engagement Team
Manager

responding to people from LGBT
communities.
Carers
Ensuring that carers are actively
involved and that their views,
preferences and concerns are
considered within the design
and development of services.
Managing carers expectation on
transformation of services that
could affect carers negatively on
changes proposed.

Agenda Pack Page 51

Young Peoples and CAMHS
transitioning into Adult Care
mental health services

HPFT have carer representation
HPFT have an established Co
production board and carer and
service user group organisations
who input/co-design new service
plans that fully embed carers needs
and is aligned to the Triangle of
Care model and Carers Strategy.

Risks identified and
mitigation controls
embedded
Clear agreed outcomes
on carers expectation
and their identified needs
Communication plan
agreed

Carers feedback
Focus groups
Satisfaction surveys

Inclusion and
engagement team
manager

HPFT will work with the
transformation leads to ensure that
the impact and implications are
clearly identified as part of the
transitioning pathway.

To agree and prioritise
the identified service
users and map out a
plan on resource and
communication with
families/users/reps

Carers feedback
Focus groups
Satisfaction surveys

CAMHS
Commissioners and
Inclusion and
engagement team

This EqIA has been signed off by:
Lead Equality Impact Assessment officer:
Head of Service or Business Manager:
Review date:

Date:
Date:

Please now send the completed EqIA to equalities@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Please also ensure that the EqIA is referenced in and included as an appendix to reports to Management Boards
Cabinet Panels and Cabinet so that decision makers can consider equality impacts before making decisions.

25

Guidance end-notes
Who completes the EqIA: The person who is making the decision or advising the decision-maker about a policy. It is better to do this as a team, with
people involved who understand the implementation of the policy.
2 Title of EqIA: This should clearly explain what service / policy / strategy / change you are assessing.
1

Focus of EqIA: A member of the public should have a good understanding of the policy or service and any proposals after reading this section. Please use
plain English and write any acronyms in full first time. Also explain if there is a particular focus to your equality analysis:

What are the main aims or purpose of the policy, practice, service or function? How does it fit with other services?

What outcomes do you want to achieve, why and for whom? e.g. what do you want to provide, what will change/improve?

Which aspects are most important to equality and should be the focus of your attention?

You should state all teams/organisations involved in implementing, carrying out or delivering the policy, practice or service

What are the reason(s) for the proposal or change (financial, service, legal etc)? The Act requires us to make these clear.
3

Agenda Pack Page 52

4

Data & Information: Your EqIA needs to be informed by data. You should consider the following:

What data relevant to the impact on protected groups is available?
(is there an existing EqIA?, local service data, national data, community data, similar proposal in another local authority).

What further evidence is needed and how can you get it? (e.g. further research or engagement with the affected groups).

What do you know from service/local data about needs, access and outcomes? Focus on each characteristic in turn.

What might any local demographic changes or trends mean for the service or function? Also consider national data if appropriate

Does data/monitoring show that any policies or practices create particular problems or difficulties for any group(s)?

Is the service having a positive or negative effect on particular people or groups in the community?

5

What have people told you about the service, function, area?

Use service user feedback, complaints, audits, and/or the results of specific consultation/engagement

Are there patterns or differences in what people from different groups tell you?

Remember, you must engage/consult appropriately and in an inclusive way with those likely to be affected to fulfil the equality duty.

You can read HCC’s Consultation and Engagement toolkits for full advice on this

For practical tips and advice on consulting with people from protected groups, see this ‘How-to’ guide

6

Impact: Your EqIA must consider fully and properly actual and potential impacts against each protected characteristic:

The equality duty does not stop changes, but means we must fully consider and address the anticipated impacts on people.

Be accurate and transparent, but also realistic: don’t exaggerate speculative risks and negative impacts.

Be detailed and specific where you can so decision-makers have a concrete sense of potential effects.

Questions to ask when assessing whether and how the proposals impact on service users, staff and the wider community:
o
Are one or more protected groups affected differently and/or disadvantaged? How, and to what extent?
o
Is there evidence of higher/lower uptake among different groups? Which, and to what extent?
o
Does the project relate to an area with known inequalities (where national evidence or previous research is available)?
o
If there are likely to be different impacts on different groups, is that consistent with the overall objective?
o
If there is negative differential impact, how can you minimise that while taking into account your overall aims?

26

o
o
7

Do the effects amount to unlawful discrimination? If so the plan must be modified.
Does it relate to an area where equality objectives have been set by HCC in our Equality Strategy?

Consider actions relating to the following:

That specifically address the impacts you’ve identified and show how they will remove, reduce or avoid any negative impacts

Explain clearly what any mitigating measures are, and the extent to which you think they will reduce / remove the adverse effect

Will you need to communicate or provide services in different ways for different groups in order to create a “level playing field”?

State how you can maximise any positive impacts or advance equality of opportunity.

If you do not have sufficient equality information, state how you can fill the gaps.

Age: People of all ages, but consider in particular children and young people, older people and carers, looked after children and young people leaving care.
Also consider working age people.

8

Disability: When looking at disability, consideration should be given to people with different types of impairments: physical (including mobility), learning,
aural or sensory (including hearing and vision impairment), visible and non-visible impairment. Consideration should also be given to: people with HIV, people
with mental health needs and people with drug and alcohol problems. People with conditions such as diabetes and cancer and some other health conditions
also have protection under the Equality Act 2010.
9

Agenda Pack Page 53

Gender Reassignment: In the Act a transgender person is someone who proposes to, starts or has completed a process to change his or her gender. A
person does not need to be under medical supervision to be protected. Consider transgender people, transsexual people and transvestites.

10

Pregnancy and Maternity: When looking at pregnancy and maternity, give consideration to pregnant women, breastfeeding mothers, part-time workers,
women with caring responsibilities, women who are lone parents and parents on low incomes, women on maternity leave and Keeping in Touch days.

11

Race/Ethnicity: Apart from the common ethnic groups, consideration should also be given to Gypsy, Roma and Irish Travellers communities, people of
other nationalities outside Britain who reside here, refugees and asylum seekers and speakers of other languages.
12

Religion and Belief: Religion includes any religion with a clear structure and belief system. As a minimum you should consider the most common religious
groups (Christian, Muslim, Hindu, Jews, Sikh, Buddhist) and people with no religion or philosophical belief(s).

13

Sex/Gender: Consider girls and women, boys and men, married people, civil partners, part-time workers, carers (both of children with disabilities and older
cares), parents (mothers and fathers), in particular lone parents and parents on low incomes.
14

15

Sexual Orientation: The Act protects bisexual, heterosexual, gay and lesbian people.

Marriage and Civil Partnership: consider married people and civil partners – e.g. do same sex couple in a civil partnership have the same rights and
benefits as married people?

16

Carers: From April 2015, carers (people who provide unpaid care to a friend or relative) have been entitled to an assessment of their own needs in the
same way as those they care for. Although not a ‘protected characteristic’ HCC Diversity Board has agreed that the impact of proposals on carers should
also be considered.

17

27

Other relevant groups: You should consider the impact on our service users in other related areas, such as health and wellbeing, crime and disorder (e.g.
people experiencing domestic abuse), community relations and socio-economic status (e.g. homelessness or low incomes). If the proposal is likely to have
an impact on service users in these areas, HCC Public Health and the County Community Safety Unit may be able to help. Also consider whether your policy
or decision will impact current or former Armed Forces personnel living and working in Hertfordshire. The Council is committed to the Hertfordshire
Community Covenant, a commitment from public and private organisations in the county to support the active and retired Armed Forces community.

18

Equality of opportunity and good relations: summarise anything that will have a potential positive impact over and above the work of your project – e.g.
engaging with the community may help raise awareness and community understanding of the needs of certain groups.

19

20

Agenda Pack Page 54

Conclusion

Make a frank and realistic assessment of the overall extent to which the negative impacts can be reduced or avoided by the mitigating
measures. Also explain what positive impacts will result from the actions and how you can make the most of these.

Make it clear if a change is needed to the proposal itself. Is further engagement, research or monitoring needed?

Make it clear if, as a result of the analysis, the policy/proposal should be stopped.

Action Planning: The Equality Duty is an ongoing duty: policies must be kept under review, continuing to give ‘due regard’ to the duty. If an assessment of
a broad proposal leads to more specific proposals, then further equality assessment and consultation are needed.

21

28

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
ADULT CARE & HEALTH CABINET PANEL
WEDNESDAY 6 NOVEMBER 2019 AT 10:00AM

Agenda Item No.

4

HERTFORDSHIRE CARE STANDARD (QUARTER 2)
Report of the Director of Adult Care Services
Author:-

Ruth Harrington, Head of Community Commissioning
Adult Disability (Tel: 01438 845843)

Executive Member:-

Richard Roberts, Adult Care & Health

1.

Purpose of report

1.1

This report will inform Cabinet Panel of the quality and range of adult
care services commissioned across Hertfordshire since April 2019.
Services are working towards the Herts Care Standard.

2.

Summary

2.1

The Adult Care Services Community Commissioning teams
commission residential, nursing, homecare, supported living and day
services for older people and adults with disabilities at a value of
around £200 million per annum.

2.2

All services are asked to work to the Herts Care Standard. This gives
guidance for how care providers should recruit and deploy staff, and
how they should plan care with the people they support. The
Standard aims to ensure that people of Hertfordshire who receive care
and support services are treated with compassion, kindness and
dignity.

2.3

This report provides information about the quality of commissioned
care providers, who are monitored against the Herts Care Standard.

3.

Recommendation

3.1

Panel is invited to note the contents of the report.

Agenda Pack Page 55

1

4.

Background

4.1

This report is a performance summary of commissioned provision
across residential, nursing, homecare, supported living and day service
providers for both older people and adults with disabilities.

4.2

The Hertfordshire Care Standard is used to monitor performance
against a set of regional standards, such as leadership, involvement of
service users, level of complaints and safeguarding activity.

4.3

Targets are set to include one monitoring visit per provider per year.
Visits are prioritised according to a risk rating that takes in to account
outcomes of Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspections, financial
monitoring and feedback gained from operational teams, the Clinical
Commissioning Groups and service users and their families.

4.4

The key insights from the analysis of provider quality are summarised
below.

4.5

Quality

4.5.1 The quality of service continues to be good across all service types in
the majority of cases, with a small number of excellent, a small number
of requires improvement and a very small number of poor services.
4.5.2 Homecare providers in particular are providing a high level quality of
care, the residential and nursing care market has a number of
providers that are requiring more intensive support to meet our
expectations.
4.5.3 Monitoring of day services is challenging at present due to resource
issues but these services are low risk and commissioning teams do
respond quickly if a concern is raised by colleagues, service users or
their families.
4.5.4 Due to a recent procurement process a number of new Supported
Living providers have not yet been monitored by our commissioning
teams. Many of these providers are not yet providing support to
individuals and monitoring visits are planned over the next year.
4.5.5 While complaints about homecare have increased, mainly due to
commissioned activity not taking place, satisfaction levels continue to
be high. Trends with specific providers are addressed individually.
4.5.6 A slightly increased number of Providers have gone into the Safety &
Improvement (SIP) process in Quarter 2. This is an intensive process
to address concerns raised during Monitoring that requires providers to
take immediate action.

Agenda Pack Page 56

2

4.6

Market Conditions

4.6.1 There has been an overall increase in the number of residential care
packages commissioned this year due to a reduced number of ceased
packages in 2018 compared to previous years.
4.6.2 Homecare provider (Alina Stevenage) handed back 23 service users
during Quarter 1, as a result of ongoing issues from the Allied transfer.
4.6.3 Over the course of Quarter 2 there has been an overall increase in
homecare hours delivered across Herts Valleys. This has resulted in a
significant reduction on the uncovered waiting list for homecare across
the Herts Valley area.
4.64

The overall market share for homecare is still heavily weighted in
favour of spot provision. The failure of Allied Healthcare in December
2018 has impacted these figures overall as there is no defined lead
provider in the North Hertfordshire area. There is unlikely to be a large
shift in this position until new contract model comes into place in April
2020.

4.6.5 Commissioners are working with homecare lead providers to improve
upon levels of refusals of packages and understand the implications of
market conditions and where improvements in processes and
communication can be made to increase hours delivered by lead
providers.
4.7

Cost

4.7.1 Costs of care from all commissioned providers have stayed steady this
year with our largest providers staying stable across all markets.
5.

Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs)

5.1

When considering proposals placed before Members it is important
that they are fully aware of, and have themselves rigorously considered
the equalities implications of the decision that they are taking.

5.2

Rigorous consideration will ensure that proper appreciation of any
potential impact of that decision on the County Council’s statutory
obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty. As a minimum this
requires decision makers to read and carefully consider the content of
any Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) produced by officers.

5.3

The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council when exercising its
functions to have due regard to the need to (a) eliminate discrimination,
harassment, victimisation and other conduct prohibited under the Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a

Agenda Pack Page 57

3

relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it and
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. The
protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are age;
disability; gender reassignment; marriage and civil partnership;
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion and belief, sex and sexual
orientation.
5.4

No EqIA was undertaken in relation to this matter. This report is for
noting and commenting purposes only and does not require a decision
which would have any equality implications.

Agenda Pack Page 58

4

Item 4 Appendix 1

Hertfordshire Care Standard
Agenda Pack Page 59

Inspecting services to ensure high quality
care for clients within Hertfordshire

www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

% of Hertfordshire Providers who have been monitored
proivders will not be
monitored in 2019/20

Agenda Pack Page 60

41%
50%
67%

74%

51%
50%
32%

26%
7%
Supported Living

Day Opportunity
Providers

Assessment Monitored Completed

Residential & Nursing
Providers

To be Monitored

unable to review

Homecare Providers
Quarterly Target

Agenda Pack Page 61

Supported Living
• The new framework brought 22 new
providers to the market, growing this
market to over 90 providers.
• By Q2, 39% of all contracted Supported
Living providers were visited.
• None of the new providers have yet been
visited. They are scheduled to be
monitored later in the financial year or
will be monitored if they pick up business
before that time.

Day Opportunities
• Low monitoring due to resource issue
around monitoring officers in Adult
Disability Service.
• Working towards the goal of monitoring
approx. 50% of the day opportunity market
(24 providers)
• Work has been slow so far due to both
Providers visited needing significant input
to improve service

Residential & Nursing care
•

This is on target at 50% of the visits
undertaken mid way through the year
for all residential and nursing homes
across Adult Disability Service and Older
People’s where HCC funded residents
are residing.

Homecare
• 21 PAMMS assessments have been
published.
• There are 66 in total to be carried out
during 2019/20 – this number
fluctuates as new providers come on
board or providers reduce to 0 service
users.
• Officers have been supporting capacity
work and sourcing escalated homecare
packages to support operational
colleagues

Residential & Nursing
Monitoring Outcomes

•

•

Agenda Pack Page 62

Poor
3%
Requires
Improvement
21%
Good
60%
Excellent
16%

•

The number of good / excellent providers
of those that have been monitored and
published in 2019/20 is 76%, slightly
below the target of 80%.
Analysis of training provided by internal
workforce development and Herts Care
Providers’ Association (HCPA) has been
undertaken and mapped across to the
areas identified as requiring improvement
and poor in PAMMs in 2018/19. Where
training is available it has been identified
that failing providers have not attended
and in quarter three all of these providers
will be targeted to attend training.
The care planning toolkit has been
finalised and sent to all providers to
address those requiring improvement in
care planning. Monitoring have attended
the HCPA managers network event to talk
about the requirements around
medication management as another trend
identified.

Supported Living Providers

•
•

•

Agenda Pack Page 63

Requires
Improvem
ent
9%
Good
67%
Excellent
14%

•

9 providers were monitored with a
completed PAMMS assessment
The quality of care plans have improved
- more person-centred with relevant
information.
There has been increased use of
electronic log-ins to access care plans allowing providers to deliver flexible
care and a shift from providers using
agency workers to bank/relief workers.
Concerns include excessive staff hours
(even if voluntarily), issues with the
recruitment and retention of staff , staff
not sufficiently inducted and trained;
and lack of feedback surveys.
Providers have been given links to HCPA
to support staff training needs and to
facilitate feedback surveys. Providers
with RI and poor are working on service
improvement plans.

Homecare Providers
Agenda Pack Page 64

Requires
Excellent
Improvemen
15%
t
8%

• At the end of Q2 2 providers
are rated Requires
Improvement, 29 are rated
Good and 8 are rated
Excellent. 0 homecare
providers are rated Poor.
Good
77%

VCS Providers

Agenda Pack Page 65

Consistent
ly
Compliant
20%

Always
Compliant
80%

• Graded monitoring is
undertaken for the largest 5 of
our providers: the remainder
have contract monitoring visits
at least 6 monthly which are
not graded as they cover areas
individual to each service.
• Once PAMMS is available we
expect to identify a set of
common themes we can grade
across all VCS providers.
• The grades are: always
compliant, consistently
compliant, sometimes
compliant, not compliant.

% of Clients in Provider setting by HCC inspection ratings
(Year to Date- April- June 19)
proivders will not be
monitored in 2019/20

Agenda Pack Page 66

3.2%
10.9%

28%

20.8%

20.5%

41.4%

96%
57.1%
55.3%

42.3%

6.0%
Supported Living

2.5%

1.5%

Day Opportunities

Will not be reviewed in 2019/20

Inadequate/Poor

11.1%
Residential & Nursing
Providers

Requires improvement

Homecare Providers

Good

Excellent

Supported Living
There is a small increase of 0.5% of service
users in an excellent setting and a 7% increase
in service users in a requires improvement
setting.

Agenda Pack Page 67

28% of people are supported in services that
do not currently have a monitor rating. They
are either new providers /services or the
monitoring is led by HPFT as the service users
are primarily funded by HPFT.

Day Opportunities
Because of the lack of routine monitoring
only a small number of services have a
current monitoring rating.
Because of this there is no significant change
in picture to last quarter.

Residential
Work is underway in partnership with the
workforce development team to address
some of the common themes arising from
2018/19 via a review of training available
against the PAMMs standards. Action plans
are being regularly monitored’

Homecare
At end of Q2 100 service users are
supported by the 2 providers rated
Requires IMPROVEMENT.
The number of service users supported by
a provider rated Excellent has increased
between Q1 and Q2 from 887 to 1711, this
is primarily as a result of Care By Us rising
from a Good to an Excellent rating.
The 2 providers rated RI have been issued
with a non-critical default notice following
contractual processes.

Active Safety Improvement Process Q1

Agenda Pack Page 68

5
2

3
2

Q1

Q2
Residential

Q3
Nursing

Q4

Complaints/Concerns Q1
2
1

Agenda Pack Page 69

1
1

52
36

Q1
Homecare

Q2
Residential & Nursing

Q3
Supported Living

Q4
Day Opp

Client Satisfaction - Homecare
96%

Agenda Pack Page 70

95%

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Agenda Pack Page 71

thank you
www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item No.

ADULT CARE AND HEALTH CABINET PANEL
WEDNESDAY 6 NOVEMBER 2019 AT 10:00 AM

5

ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2018-19 FROM HERTS AT HOME LIMITED
Report of the Director of Adult Care Services
Author:-

Steven Lee-Foster, Director of Community and
Specialist Services (Tel: 01992 555748)

Executive Member:-

Richard Roberts, Adult Care and Health

1.

Purpose of report

1.1

To present to the Cabinet Panel a report on the operation of Herts at
Home Limited, the County Council’s trading company for social care,
covering its first year of operation.

2.

Summary

2.1

Cabinet took a decision on the 18 December 2017 to establish a
wholly-owned trading company to deliver adult care services in the
county. The aim being to support the statutory role in safeguarding
care services by providing a new option when the County Council
might need to act as a provider of last resort. While alternative
providers can often be sourced this is not always the case, and Herts
at Home also provides a new way of addressing problems in the local
care market.

2.2

The outline business plan of the company envisaged it being able to
undertake a range of functions should the County Council need it to
take on services that would otherwise have to close, or where
providers were withdrawing from a service and it wasn’t possible to
arrange for an alternative provider.

2.3

Herts at Home has been trading since December 2018 and the annual
report covers the period to the 31 March 2019, but it also sets out the
current activity and future plans in order to keep the Cabinet Panel up
to date with the company’s activities. It is intended that the company
will present a report to the Cabinet Panel annually in November each
year.

Agenda Pack Page 73

1

3.

Recommendations

3.1

That Cabinet Panel notes the annual report from Herts at Home
Limited for 2018-19.

4.

Background

4.1

In 2018 the national home care company, Allied Healthcare (trading as
Goldsborough Home Care in Hertfordshire), announced it intended to
enter a Company Voluntary Agreement with its creditors due to cashflow and other financial pressures. In response to this the Care Quality
Commission (CQC) undertook its own due diligence assessment of the
company and it became apparent that the company was at risk of
collapsing. The County Council put in place a plan that would transfer
the Allied Healthcare contracts to other existing providers in the county
and, in respect of North Hertfordshire, to Herts at Home. The Company
was also asked to take on two flexi-care services managed by Allied
Healthcare: one in Borehamwood and one in Letchworth. These
services were transferred to the company on the 6 December 2018.

4.2

Prior to the collapse of Allied Healthcare the County Council had been
given notice by Settle (formerly North Herts Homes) that it wished to
cease providing care services at the five flexi-care services it owns.
Settle wished to remain the landlord and manage the tenancies but it
did not want to provide the regulated care services. The County
Council had asked Herts at Home to take on these services, primarily
as a way of the company being able to commence trading and build
the necessary workforce to support the County Council if needed.
These services were transferred to the Company on the 28 February
2019.

4.3

The company is concentrating on developing the infrastructure and
culture necessary to deliver high quality services. Because nearly all
the company’s staff were transferred from other providers under TUPE
a significant challenge is to develop the company’s own values and
ethos. In a similar way to other County Council-owned trading
companies, Herts at Home buys its finance, HR and IT services from
the County Council and it currently has temporary office space in
County Hall. In the future, the company is likely to re-locate to North
Hertfordshire, but it will continue to use the support services provided
by the County Council.

4.4

Herts at Home is a trading company but it is wholly-owned by the
County Council and all of it’s directors are approved by the County
Council. The County Council exercises control of the company by
directly appointing directors to the board, and through a formal scheme
of delegation. There are no other investors and any profit on activity
can either be returned to the County Council in the form of a dividend
or re-invested in services.

Agenda Pack Page 74

2

5

Financial Implications

5.1

Herts at Home Limited was established by the County Council
purchasing share capital of £140,000 in order to provide the company
with working capital. There is a loan draw down agreement in place
between the County Council and the company to allow it to borrow at a
commercial rate but to date this facility has not been used.

5.2

The company derives income from the three contracts it has in place
with the County Council and income from private clients. The
Company’s turnover is currently approximately £3.5m.

6

Equalities Implications

6.1

When considering proposals placed before Members it is important
that they are fully aware of, and have themselves rigorously considered
the equalities implications of the decision that they are taking.

6.2

Rigorous consideration will ensure that proper appreciation of any
potential impact of that decision on the County Council’s statutory
obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty. As a minimum this
requires decision makers to read and carefully consider the content of
any Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) produced by officers.

6.3

The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council when exercising its
functions to have due regard to the need to (a) eliminate discrimination,
harassment, victimisation and other conduct prohibited under the Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it and
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. The
protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are age;
disability; gender reassignment; marriage and civil partnership;
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion and belief, sex and sexual
orientation.

6.4

No Equalities Impact Assessment was undertaken in relation to this
report. This report is for noting and commenting purposes only and
does not require a decision which would have any equality implications.

Background Documents:
Appendix 1: Herts at Home Limited – Annual Report 2018-19
Cabinet - 18 December 2017
https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/CeListDocuments.aspx?CommitteeId=
146&MeetingId=420&DF=18%2f12%2f2017&Ver=2

Agenda Pack Page 75

3

This page is intentionally left blank

2018-19 Annual Report
to Cabinet Panel for Adults and Health,
Hertfordshire County Council

Registered c/o No: 11360947
CQC Registration provider ID: 1-6067136630

Agenda Pack Page 77

1

Non-Executive Directors of the company
Beverley Flowers
Steven Lee-Foster (Chairman)*
Taryn Pearson-Rose*
Gillian Quinton
(*Appointed by Hertfordshire County Council)

Company Secretary
Peter Hobbs

Managing Director
Melanie Yeoman

Registered Manager
Maggie Rogalska

Agenda Pack Page 78

2

Background
Herts at Home Limited was incorporated on the 14 May 2018 and subsequently commenced
trading, taking on its first contracts with Hertfordshire County Council, on the 6 December
2019. The company is registered with the Care Quality Commission to provide personal care
and its principal business activity is providing domiciliary care services in North
Hertfordshire, Borehamwood and St Albans (the latter two being locations for two of the
company’s seven flexi-care services).
Herts at Home is company wholly owned by Hertfordshire County Council with no other
shareholders and the Company is treated as if it were a department of the County Council in
terms of procurement and compliance with State Aid regulations. While it is a private
company, its main purpose is to undertake activities that the shareholder wishes the
company to undertake; save that the Board acts at all times only in the interests of the
company.
Herts at Home is based in County Hall in temporary offices let to the company on a
commercial basis by the County Council. The managing director is responsible for
operational activities and reports to the Board through the Chairman. The company
employs 61 full-time and 74 part-time staff; the majority of these are based in the flexi-care
services or allocated to community domiciliary services in Letchworth. The central office
staff deal principally with care service scheduling and staff rotas; invoicing and contract data
management; training and care quality; and recruitment and selection.

The Company’s values and objectives
Herts at Home Limited Vision
Herts at Home Limited will strive to ensure every customer is supported to live the life they
choose so they can lead happy and fulfilling lives.
Herts at Home Limited Values
Everyone employed and associated with Herts at Home Limited will work at all times in
accordance with the following values.
•
Collaborative – We will work with other organisations to ensure services are high
quality and outcome focused.
•
Adaptable – We will provide flexible services that can respond to the changing needs
of customers to ensure that the right care is given in the right place at the right time.
•
Inclusive – As well as listening to and recognising, customers’ and employees’ needs,
goals, aspirations and choices, we will provide opportunities for staff and customers to
influence and determine the Company’s services.
•
Enabling – We will promote and enable individuals to participate in the wider
community, as well as supporting choice to maximise independence.

Agenda Pack Page 79

3

•
Sustainable – We will be future focused, promoting and embracing new technology
and working to ensure we constantly review what we do to innovate and translate new
ideas into great services.
•
Trusted – We will work at all times to ensure our services are safe, reliable, and
delivered by staff with the right skills, experience, training, knowledge and support.
•
Value for money – We will work at all times to ensure our services are cost-effective
and sustainable, without compromising quality.
Herts at Home Limited Objectives
Herts at Home Limited can help Hertfordshire County Council meet its aspiration by offering
wider opportunities for innovation. The Company’s objectives are set out below together
with the anticipated benefits for Hertfordshire County Council, customers, and the local care
sector generally.
Objective - To increase the range of options available to Hertfordshire County Council by
developing innovative models of care and support.
Benefits
•
•
•
•

The Company will offer a new support service that will sit between outsourcing and
in-house provision
Herts at Home Limited will work with Herts Care Providers’ Association (HCPA), their
members and other partners in the same was as any provider would
Herts at Home Limited will offer an additional option to pilot new models of care
The Company could offer a new route to explore ways to support Personal Assistants
as a workforce to deliver personalised care locally.

Objective - To offer opportunities to develop Hertfordshire County Council’s understanding
of care costs and the factors influencing the service cost, volume and the quality of care in
the county.
Benefits
•
•

The Company could offer additional support to providers before the “serious
concerns” process is activated
Herts at Home Limited will work with other sector SMEs and voluntary sector
providers locally.

Objective - To offer a new way to develop Hertfordshire County Council’s ability to
anticipate and respond to service shortages and provider performance problems - including
emergency provider failure.
Benefits
•

Hertfordshire County Council will have a controlled Company that can take on
additional services as necessary

Agenda Pack Page 80

4

•

Over time Herts at Home Limited will be able to acquire knowledge and experience
that can be directly transferred to the County Council to improve service design and
commissioning.

Objective - To offer an additional route to develop new models of service provision.
Benefits
•
•

Opportunity to work in partnership with the County Council’s existing “in-house”
services to support and deliver new operational models of care
To support the development of a diverse and flexible workforce able and willing to
support people with different needs (specifically the development of a staff “bank”
service”).

Objective - To return any surplus to Hertfordshire County Council “recycling” any profit into
new service innovation as directed by the County Council through the Herts at Home
Limited Board.
Benefits
•
•

Ensures entirety of contract payments are used only for care and support services
within Hertfordshire
Offers potential to fund small one-off investments in the future should this be
possible based on Company earnings.

Herts at Home Limited as an Employer
Herts at Home Limited works to the following principles as an employer.
•

•
•
•
•

•
•

Employees will be paid a sustainable wage that is competitive with other local
service industries and that attracts individuals who wish to work within the caring
sector as a career.
Employees will be paid sick pay, travel time, travel costs and other necessary
expenses such as training, mobile phones, uniforms, and DBS checks.
The Company will offer a choice of contracts offering fixed, permanent, flexible
arrangements.
The Company will adhere to the Hertfordshire Care Standards.
The employment conditions, benefits and rewards being offered to staff will suit the
needs of the business and the demands of the local market but will be developed
carefully in order not to distort the market.
The Company will work collaboratively with other providers and partners.
The Company will align its way of operating to the framework developed by Skills for
Care for the provision of care services.

Herts at Home Limited is regulated as a registered care provider with the CQC and provides
training to staff across the care delivery, management and business support teams. The
company’s formal training plan for care staff is framed to reflect care workers based within
a building, delivering care and support to individuals within flexi-care settings, as well as in

Agenda Pack Page 81

5

the community. The company maintains staff qualifications and learning standards to the
Care Certificate standard and in addition, it provides additional training based on the role
and grade of staff.
All new employees are required to complete a one week induction. Where a new or
transferring employee has already completed the Care Certificate, they shadow an
experienced care worker before being placed on the rota. The length of time they shadow a
colleague will be based on a competency assessment of their practice. Where a new
employee has not completed the Care Certificate, they complete the induction and are
enrolled onto the Care Certificate. Staff are issued with a Care Certificate workbook and
receive further training. The Care Certificate should be completed within twelve weeks.
Higher level training is completed by management and experienced staff who lead in a
particular subject or area/level of responsibility.
Induction training for new employees covers the following areas.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Introduction to Care - Code of Practice. Role and Responsibility. Recording
Information. Data Protection (GDPR).
Safeguarding – Introduction. Legislation. Duty of Care. Role and Responsibility of
Herts at Home Limited as a care provider.
Moving and Handling – Introduction to Moving and Handling. Use of Equipment and
Techniques. Practical skills.
Medication.
First Aid – Basic Awareness. Organisational Procedures. Role and Responsibility.
Working with Customers and Carers – Introduction to legislation about people who
have care needs and their family carers, dementia.
Infection Control.
Health & Safety.
Mental Capacity and Deprivation of Liberty Basic Training.
Dementia Training.
Behaviours of Concern Training.
Lone Working.
Person Centred Care Planning.
Modern Slavery.

Employees are supported to access additional training including person-centred models of
care, change and leadership. Non-care staff are required to attend basic training in relation
to the company’s procedures, use of systems, and data protection. The company provides
face-to-face training (including via third parties, HCPA) and via I-learn modules to all staff,
and operates a formal system of staff supervision, performance appraisal and development.
Following the TUPE of staff into the company, it was clear that a number of managers had
not been trained to a competent standard to deliver confidently, and to oversee all the
policies and procedures the company feels necessary to support the workforce. The
company has developed and introduced an implementation plan of action to support staff
and mitigate the risks.

Agenda Pack Page 82

6

Training and workforce development priorities
Risk

Detail

Mitigation

Carers’ Training

Identify all staff that need to
comply with mandatory
requirements (for example
medication delivery).

Centralised training
Ongoing
schedules for all staff in
place. I-Learn accounts
have been set up for each
staff member to access
training. External training
delivered and access to
HCPA courses as needed.

Manager and
Care Quality
Supervisor
Training

Management training need
identified for CQSs in
managing ill-health, and
staff performance.

Change Management
Course completed August
2019
Safeguarding, MCA and
Personalisation Courses
completed July 2019
Management Course 2 x
Days HCC Business
Partners, HR completed
for Care Team Managers
August. CQS Managers
Training 2 x Days October
Formal Training Needs
training identified for
Level 1 to Level 5 Social
Care Qualifications.

Ongoing

People Planner

Implementation of the
software, and staff training
on use.
Whole system approach
across the key CQC domains
to ensure all staff are
delivering the quality of
service expected.

All relevant staff trained
and using system. “Super
users” identified.
Intense training
programme in place.
RAG Rated Action Plan in
place to support
improvement strategy.
Lead Roles for managers
and Care Quality
Supervisors to support
peer audits, reviews,
sharing of good written
practice in line with Spot
Checks, Assessments,

July /
August 2019
Ongoing
Ongoing

CQC
Compliance
Measures

Agenda Pack Page 83

Time
Frames

7

Reviews and supporting
Person Centred Planning.
External “mock”
inspection completed.
Preparation for PAMMS
monitoring completed.

The Company’s Services
Herts at Home’s services commenced on the 6 December 2018 with the transfer under TUPE
of staff from Allied Healthcare at Fountain Court. Borehamwood; Tabor Court, Letchworth;
and community domiciliary staff working in Letchworth. The company was also required to
support 3 residents in Baldock initially although no staff transferred in the area. The
company initially maintained a small office in Letchworth that had previously been operated
by Allied Healthcare but this was closed in early 2019. A small number of staff based at
Allied Healthcare’s regional office in Stevenage also transferred to the company.
The transfer of staff from Allied Healthcare was done in a matter of weeks. Once
Hertfordshire County Council had given termination notice to Allied Healthcare, Herts at
Home worked with the County Council and other providers to support a staggered transfer
of services. Herts at Home was the last service area to be transferred to and the company
supported staff in the regional office until the last day when it assisted with the closure of
the service and the final transfer of remaining staff. Employees of Allied Healthcare were
mainly on zero-hours contracts.
The company subsequently took over five flexi-care services from a housing association
(Settle, formerly North Herts Homes) on the 23 February 2019. The transfer was conducted
in a planned way over a number of months with a joint project team with Settle. Settle owns
the buildings and residents remain tenants of Settle, but they no longer provide care
services. Staff were also TUPE transferred to the company and these have significantly
better terms and conditions of employment than the staff formerly employed by Allied
Healthcare.
The company supported staff through a difficult period when many feared for their jobs.
Through mutual agreement the company would like to encourage staff to move to its own
terms and conditions, principally to allow for greater flexibility with regard to on-call,
weekend and bank holiday cover. However, staff who transferred to the company are
protected by TUPE so the company operates with three sets of terms and conditions; three
pension arrangements; and various other contractural differences. A major initial challenge
for the company was that Allied Healthcare staff were paid weekly; all staff were moved to
monthly payroll by March 2019.

Agenda Pack Page 84

8

Service Locations
The company operates the following flexi-care services at locations across Hertfordshire.
The majority of the services are located in North Hertfordshire and are owned by Settle. The
company is not responsible for lettings or landlord functions such as rent collection and
repairs, but it maintains a close working relationship with each landlord and the landlords’
on-site staff where these are present. At the time of writing the company provided services
to 168 customers in flexi-care services; comprising 1,592 care and support hours per week.
The Company’s Flexi-care Locations
Flexi-care services
Service

Location

Landlord

Flats*

Anderson House

Hitchin

Settle

46

Parkside View

St Albans

Settle

35

Peter Sell House

Hitchin

Settle

39

Robert Humbert
House

Letchworth

Settle

35

Temple Court

Baldock

Settle

52

Tabor Court

Letchworth

Howard
Cottage
Society

36

Fountain Court

Borehamwood

Clarion

45

Total

288

(* The company does not provide care services to every resident in the flexi-care services)

Following the transfer of the flexi-care services the company undertook and completed
reviews of all service users. The process for joint reviews with Hertfordshire County Council
Adult Social Care and CCGs was agreed and the risks associated with each care plan were
assessed and mitigating actions put in place. The company has had to undertake a
significant level of work to review the arrangements for domestic tasks and the use of
Careline at the services. In the case of the Settle services, lengthy negotiations have had to
take place to put in place new arrangements for meals and to support residents and their
families with a significant change to the service model. The company has also had to review
and amend existing practices for handling customers’ monies as this was identified as not
being in line with required practice. A service improvement plan has been in place for
Fountain Court as post-transfer assessment by the company raised significant concerns

Agenda Pack Page 85

9

about various aspects of the service. Between December 2018 and September 2019 the
company has been undertaking a systematic review of all aspects of the service.
The community domiciliary care service was transferred to the company in December 2018
with a workforce predominantly based in Letchworth. Nearly all the care rounds we
inherited were in the town with the exception of three customers in Baldock. The biggest
single challenge the company faced, in addition to supporting staff following their transfer
from Allied Healthcare, was scheduling care calls and organising staff rotas. We inherited a
significant number of un-allocated calls and a workforce that had been unsupported for
some time. At the point of commencing trading the company had no electronic software
scheduling system so a manual rota had to be produced with a back up monitoring system
using instant messaging software. This was an enormous undertaking due to the need to
schedule hundreds of calls and dozens of staff; including managing sickness, holiday and
weekend/bank holiday cover.
The table below indicates the number of care calls delivered in the community service which
equates to weekly hours on average 1,050 to 1,500. We also deliver care calls in the
flexicare schemes which equates on average 400 hours per week. The company overall is
delivering just under 2,000 hours per week. The community on average delivers 150 calls
per day in the community.

At the time of writing the company supports 64 customers in the community delivering 600
hours of care every week. The company currently has one customer in Baldock and three
private funders across the services as a whole who have a direct contract with the company
to provide their care service. From December 2018 to February 2019 the company
concentrated on stabilising the community service and supporting staff through the
provision of additional training. All rounds were reviewed and rotas re-organised to improve
efficiency and reduce unallocated calls to a minimum. Despite this the company has had to
use agency cover for unfilled calls particularly due to transferring staff contracts not
stipulating weekend cover. The company has since commenced recruitment of staff and has
a plan in place to significantly reduce reliance of agency staff.

Agenda Pack Page 86

10

Scheduling System
The company purchased licences to use People Planner scheduling and rota software in
January 2019 and implemented a phased roll-out. Initially, all the community scheduling
was shifted to People Planner for testing and piloting and this has been followed by the
flexi-care services. People Planner is used for scheduling all care requirements and rostering
carers to all calls. It also logs alerts in real time. Piloting of the software identified a number
of practical issues that needed to be addressed.
•
•
•
•
•

initial software delay logging in and out of customers’ homes.
Creating a billing process has been slow and complicated.
Staff have taken some time to get to learn the system.
Employee conditions of employment vary in relation to pay.
Reports needed to be designed.

Extra training sessions with the People Planner support team were put in place to support
staff to start to become competent with entering information and using the system. The
company continues to run a back-up alert process and this allows for further refinement of
the People Planner software app. Testing helped identify how best to use the Mobizio App
that is part of the People Planner software suite, and correct configuration of mobile phones
and wi-fi and internet settings means all staff can use the functions more effectively. In
September 2019 People Planner became the call logging system for the community service
and the implementation of the system to the flexi-care settings is underway. The software is
now used for on-call covered and all of the care team managers and care quality supervisors
are trained.
Example of a Community Care Schedule for a Carer: One Week

Agenda Pack Page 87

11

Care Quality
The company employed a specialist consultant in early 2019 to undertake a review of the
company’s policies and practice. The company has used Hertfordshire County Council’s
PAMMS quality assessment framework to undertake the review and identified the following
general areas for further work.
•
•
•
•

Quality of recording.
Personalisation and care planning.
Learning from complaints and safeguarding.
Better communication for service users and their families.

The company implemented an action plan to support service improvements, and support
staff as the workforce had a wide skill base. Investment in service management roles was
identified as a key area as most staff had not been supported by their previous employer to
develop the care management skills needed to meet the standards the company wants to
achieve.

Safeguarding
The company aims to provide the highest standards of care and it treats safeguarding as its
most important priority. The company co-operates with Hertfordshire County Council at all
times and also ensures it is in full compliance with the reporting requirements of the Care
Quality Commission. The main mitigating actions the company has taken to ensure its
services meet the required standards are set out below.
•
•
•
•
•
•

Rotas are on Mobizio with call monitoring tracked by head office, and additionally in
flexi-care services by the on-site managers.
Training on medication and moving and handling has been completed by all staff.
New staff, including agency staff, must complete the mandatory induction training
modules and undergo a competency checklist signed off by managers.
A system of spot checks for carers administering medications is place.
Complaints system in place with associated policies.
Service improvement plan is in place for Fountain Court.

Workforce and Recruitment Strategy
The company’s workforce was initially made up of over 90 per cent TUPE staff transferred
from Allied Health Care and Settle. Initially, key appointments were made to the company’s
board and to the positions of Managing Director and Registered Manager. Most of the
transferring staff chose to stay with the company although there has subsequently been
some natural turnover. The company has had to restructure back office support and has
recruited a business manager position and has re-organised the scheduling team. A number
of other administrative changes have been made to support the community team and flexicare services.

Agenda Pack Page 88

12

The initial challenge facing the company was to identify the gaps in care rounds and focus
on recruiting to vacant shifts. There were significant gaps in the initial rotas and agency
expenditure has been much higher than anticipated as a result. Work is now focusing on
reducing the agency spend and rolling out the recruitment strategy. The company uses a
wide range of methods to recruit staff.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Recruitment days for face to face interaction with potential new staff.
Traditional advertising on a range of web platforms.
Social media.
Refer a family or friend scheme.
HCPA.
Open days.
Targeted recruitment campaigns and events.

Th company operates on-going recruitment for care workers and benchmarks its salaries
against similar market competitors. The focus of the company’s business in largely in
Letchworth and North Hertfordshire and there are significant challenges with the local
labour market where high employment levels mean there is a limited pool of job seekers.
The company uses open days and informal networks to promote care as a career and it
works with Hertfordshire County Council, HCPA, and other providers on campaigns to
promote care in Hertfordshire.
The company provides a range of employee benefits including a contributory pension
scheme, Herts Rewards, and paid training and employment development opportunities. The
company has its own terms and conditions and it is not part of the local government
pension scheme (except for any staff that were in it prior to TUPE transfer to the company).
Terms and conditions are similar to other providers and the company publicises the fact that
there are lots of opportunities for promotion and career development.

Future Developments
In March 2019 the company was sent a letter from the Director of Adult Care Services
setting out the desired future direction of the company. This was extremely useful in that it
described the potential assistance Hertfordshire County Council (HCC) might need from the
company, and their key priorities as the sole shareholder.
Business focus
The letter states that Herts at Home is not seen as a short-term proposition and that the
company should assume it will exist into the medium term. It goes on to state that HCC
wishes to see the company grow to a sufficient size to operate viably on a value for money
basis when compared to other providers. This represents a significant pointer to the
company that the County Council wishes to increase the company’s operational scope, and
hence turnover, and that the operating time-frame will extend beyond the current contract
arrangements.

Agenda Pack Page 89

13

Support at home and specialist care at home
The company’s current support at home work is based on the “spot” purchase of care by the
County Council in Letchworth and Baldock. At the present time individual packages of care
are offered to the company on a case-by-case basis but there is no undertaking by the
company to take a package. The County Council has now taken the decision to award the
company the lead provider work for the whole on North Hertfordshire including all the rural
areas and the towns of Hitchin and Royston, in addition to Letchworth and Baldock. This
work will commence on the 1 April 2020 and requires a significant expansion of recruitment
and care activity from this date.
The new arrangements from 1 April 2020 merge the support at home and specialist care at
home services into a single pathway. Over a number of years, the ambition is to grow the
company’s share of the home care market in North Hertfordshire to a minimum of 50% by
April 2027. The company has been given indicative care volumes. This has been used to
develop anticipated recruitment requirements for both support at home and specialist
support at home functions and will see the company grow significantly over time. This
growth is dependent on being able to source new employees over a long period and
particular challenges are envisaged covering the rural areas of North Hertfordshire.
Residential and nursing care
Adult care services have suggested that Herts at Home might wish to consider altering its
current registration with the Care Quality Commission to include nursing as a regulated
activity to be undertaken by the company. This would allow it to be considered for
additional services related to continuing health care and personal health budgets and well
as residential and nursing care services. Herts at Home is registered to provide personal care
and this would need to be amended to encompass nursing care. One option to be
considered by the company’s board is whether a partnership with a nursing provider would
be possible if the County Council were to approach it to manage residential and nursing
care.
The delivery of residential care and nursing would represent a significant departure from
the current business plan and would need detailed service and financial appraisal. The
recruitment of nursing staff is a significant challenge in its own right and the company’s
preferred initial approach would be to explore partnerships with nursing providers.
Day opportunities
The County Council is developing a new model for day services to reflect its Connected Lives
approach, and Herts at Home has been asked to consider this as a potential future business
activity. Day services are either commissioned by the County Council or purchased using a
direct payment. Day opportunities are not regulated activity and as such the VAT position is
different to regulated care services. This would need to be looked into in more detail along
with the business model. Although the company does not provide services to customers
with a learning disability the board has an open-mind in relation to developing this in the
future.

Agenda Pack Page 90

14

Flexi-care services
Hertfordshire County Council is placing the contract to manage Mary Barfield House in
Royston with Herts at Home from the 1 April 2020. The property is owned by Notting Hill
Genesis and has 17 rooms. The location provides the company with a suitable base for
developing support at home work in the area and the specialist care at home services, all of
which will commence on the 1 April 2020. The company will work with the present provider
to ensure a smooth transfer of staff; TUPE will apply to the transfer of staff.

Agenda Pack Page 91

15

This page is intentionally left blank

